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PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Iltem 1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of MaterionpGration and its subsidiaries for the secondtguand
first half ended July 1, 2011 are as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income —
Second quarter and first half ended July 1, 20XlJary 2, 201(
Consolidated Balance Sheets —
July 1, 2011 and December 31, 2(
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows —
First half ended July 1, 2011 and July 2, 2
EX-3
EX-10.2
EX-10.3
EX-10.4
EX-11
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32
EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT
EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT
EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMEN"
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Consolidated Statements of Incom

(Unaudited)
Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended
July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,

(Thousands except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $424,71( $325,94¢ $799,51! $621,02¢

Cost of sale: 362,03 270,09: 681,04« 515,86
Gross margir 62,67: 55,85! 118,47 105,16°

Selling, general and administrative expe 34,04¢ 30,61: 65,69 60,95(

Research and development expe 2,71¢ 1,79¢ 5,12¢ 3,48:

Other-net 5,06 2,94¢ 8,73t 7,031
Operating profit 20,84¢ 20,49¢ 38,92: 33,70:

Interest expens— net 61 691 1,19¢ 1,31(
Income before income tax 20,23: 19,801 37,72« 32,39

Income tax expens 6,36( 6,08¢ 12,03 11,95
Net income $ 13,87: $ 13,71¢ $ 25,69( $ 20,44(
Net income per share of common st— basic $ 066 $ o068 $ 12 $ 1.01
Weighted-average number of common shares outstgrdin

basic 20,42: 20,32 20,38¢ 20,29(
Net income per share of common st— diluted $ 067 $ 067 $ 12t $ 1.0C
Weighted-average number of common shares outstgrdin

diluted 20,83: 20,60( 20,81: 20,53«

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudited)
July 1, Dec. 31,
(Thousands) 2011 2010
Assets
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 9,461 $ 16,10¢
Accounts receivabl 149,38t 139,37
Other receivable 2,67¢ 3,972
Inventories 182,38 154,46°
Prepaid expense 37,46¢ 31,74
Deferred income taxe 10,241 10,06¢
Total current asse 391,62- 355,72!
Relater-party notes receivab 90 90
Long-term deferred income tax 2,04z 2,042
Property, plant and equipme— cost 731,72 719,95:
Less allowances for depreciation, depletion andréination (473,749 (454,089
Property, plant and equipmeé— net 257,98 265,86¢
Intangible asset 34,20: 36,84¢
Other asset 7,831 1,90(
Goodwill 72,93¢ 72,93¢
Total assets $766,71: $ 735,41(
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current liabilities
Shor-term deb $ 39,337 $ 47,83t
Accounts payabl 37,91 33,37t
Salaries and wagt 22,181 34,03t
Taxes other than income tay 25€ 90t
Other liabilities and accrued iter 26,70¢ 24,911
Unearned revent 2,83t 2,37¢
Income taxe: — 3,921
Total current liabilities 129,22( 147,36(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 18,09: 17,91t
Retirement and pc-employment benefit 81,58¢ 82,50:
Unearned incom 59,72¢ 57,15¢
Long-term income taxe 2,90¢ 2,90¢
Deferred income taxe 4,01C 4,91z
Long-term debt 55,69: 38,30¢
Shareholder equity 415,48 384,35t
Total liabilities and shareholders equity $766,71: $ 735,41(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

(Unaudited)
First Half Ended
July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010
Net income $ 25,690 $ 20,44(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash udén operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 22,42t 17,10(
Amortization of deferred financing costs in intérespens¢ 23¢ 282
Derivative financial instrument ineffectivene — 48¢
Stoclk-based compensation expel 2,191 1,98¢
Changes in assets and liabilities net of acquiredsaets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receiv (8,627 (58,36¢)
Decrease (increase) in other receiva 1,29: 6,22¢
Decrease (increase) in inventc (26,805 (10,276
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other curreets (5,567) (1,147
Decrease (increase) in deferred income ti (200 6,117
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpedse (6,415) (2,79%)
Increase (decrease) in unearned reve 454 (29
Increase (decrease) in interest and taxes pa (4,34¢) (359
Increase (decrease) in Ic-term liabilities (1,655 (1,265
Other— net (5,819 (59
Net cash used in operating activities (7,137 (20,659
Cash flows from investing activitie
Payments for purchase of property, plant and eqeiip (11,109 (24,769
Payments for mine developme (183) (7,42%)
Reimbursements for capital equipment under goventrantracts 2,57(C 14,91¢
Payments for purchase of business net of cashvest — (20,609
Proceeds from transfer of acquired inventory tosggmment line — 5,667
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 33 76
Other investment— net 13 14
Net cash used in investing activities (8,670 (32,12¢)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Repayments of sh-term debt (8,527) (14,039
Proceeds from issuance of lc-term debt 42,47 70,00(
Repayment of lor-term debi (25,087 —
Debt issuance cos (623) —
Principal payments under capital lease obligat (441) (55)
Issuance of common stock under stock option 69¢ 851
Tax benefit from stock compensation realizar 37€ 164
Net cash provided from financing activities 8,871 56,92t
Effects of exchange rate chang 287 (317)
Net change in cash and cash equivaler (6,647) 3,82¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peric 16,10 12,25:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric $ 9,461 $ 16,08

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note A — Accounting Policies

In managemeng’ opinion, the accompanying consolidated finarstialements contain all adjustments nece:
to present fairly the financial position as of Juily2011 and December 31, 2010 and the resultpexftions for the
second quarter and first half ended July 1, 20HLJaty 2, 2010. All adjustments were of a normal eecurring
nature. Certain amounts in prior years have beglagsified to conform to the 2011 consolidatedriirial statement

presentation.

Note B — Inventories

July 1, Dec. 31,

(Thousands) 2011 2010

Principally average cos

Raw materials and suppli $ 57,93 $ 43,29
Work in proces: 155,58! 159,08:
Finished good 59,61 32,99
Gross inventorie 273,13: 235,36
Excess of average cost over LIFO inventory vi 90,74¢ 80,90(
Net inventories $182,38¢ $154,46°

Note C — Pensions and Other Post-employment Benefit

The following is a summary of the second quartet finst half 2011 and 2010 net periodic benefittdos the

domestic defined benefit pension plan and the domesiree medical plan.

Pension Benefits
Second Quarter Endec

Other Benefits
Second Quarter Endec

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Components of net periodic benefit cos
Service cos $ 151 $124 $ 71 $ 68
Interest cos 2,30¢ 2,15¢ 39¢ 434
Expected return on plan ass (2,685 (2,536 — —
Amortization of prior service co: (11¢) (132) (9) (9)
Amortization of net los 982 711 — —
Net periodic benefit cos $ 2,004 $ 1,44 $ 461 $ 49:

Pension Benefits
First Half Ended

Other Benefits
First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Components of net periodic benefit cos
Service cos $ 3038 $248 $ 14z $ 13¢
Interest cos 4,61¢ 4,312 79¢ 86¢
Expected return on plan ass (5,370 (5,072 — —
Amortization of prior service co: (23¢) (26%) (18 (18)
Amortization of net los 1,96: 1,422 — —
Net periodic benefit cos $ 4006 $288 $ 922 $ 987
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The Company made contributions to the domestimddfbenefit pension plan of $3.6 million in thesfinalf
2011.

Note D — Contingencies

Materion Brush Inc. (formerly known as Brush Welhrlac.), one of the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, has been a defendant from time te itinbegal proceedings where the plaintiffs alléggy have
contracted chronic beryllium disease (CBD) or edahilments as a result of exposure to berylliumo TBD cases
were outstanding as of December 31, 2010. Duriaditht half of 2011, one case was dismissed whieother cas
was settled for an amount less than $0.1 millidrer& were no new CBD cases files during the fiadtt &f 2011 an
no cases were outstanding as of the end of thendeparter 2011.

The Company will record a reserve for CBD or oflitegation when a loss from either settlement ordiet is
probable and estimable. Claims filed by third-pagintiffs where the alleged exposure occurredrio
December 31, 2007 may be covered by insurancedubjen annual deductible of $1.0 million. Reseraee
recorded for asserted claims only and defense eostsxpensed as incurred.

The Company has an active environmental complianogram and records reserves for the probableofost
identified environmental remediation projects. Tagserves are established based upon analyses teddbycthe
Company'’s engineers and outside consultants analdjusted from time to time based upon ongoingietydhe
difference between actual and estimated costs toai factors. The reserves may also be affectedlngs and
negotiations with regulatory agencies. The undistedireserve balance was $5.1 million as of JuB01,1 and
$5.2 million as of December 31, 2010. Environmeptajects tend to be long-term and the final acteaiediation
costs may differ from the amounts currently recdrde

Note E — Comprehensive Income

The reconciliation between net income and comprsikierincome for the second quarter and first hadfesl
July 1, 2011 and July 2, 2010 is as follows:

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net income $13,87: $13,71¢ $25,69( $20,44(
Cumulative translation adjustme 757 (440 2,06¢ (1,346
Change in the fair value of derivative financiatiuments, net of ta (211) (85) (411 447
Pension and other retirement plan liability adjuestibs, net of ta: 56( 373 1,12C 74€
Comprehensive incon $14,97¢ $13,567 $28,467 $20,28¢

Note F — Segment Reporting

In the fourth quarter 2010, the names of the Comgdour reportable segments were changed. Advanced
Material Technologies and Services has become AmbdhMaterial Technologies, Specialty Engineeredydlwas
revised to Performance Alloys, Beryllium and Bamyth Composites was shortened to Beryllium and Csites
and Engineered Material Systems was changed toniedtMaterials. These changes only affected
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the segment names as the segments’ make up, repsttuctures and how they are evaluated remaineldamged
from previous periods.

Advanced
Material Performance Beryllium and Technical All
(Thousands) Technologies Alloys Composites Materials  Subtotal Other  Total
Second Quarter 201
Sales to external custome $287,29¢ $ 96,63¢ $ 17,72¢ $22,95¢ $424,61¢ $ 92 $424,71(
Intersegment sale 843 992 32 387 2,25¢ — 2,25¢
Operating profit (loss 10,66« 9,45: 1,10¢ 2,36¢ 23,58¢ (2,744 20,84t
Second Quarter 201
Sales to external custome $213,89° $ 77,852 $ 15,73¢ $18,41: $325,90( $ 46 $325,94¢
Intersegment sale 467 2,93t 144 91¢ 4,465 — 4,46~
Operating profit (loss 9,24¢€ 8,51( 2,074 2,03 21,86 (1,365 20,49¢
First Half 2011
Sales to external custome $543,92! $181,08! $ 31,687 $42,61¢ $799,31: $ 202 $799,51!
Intersegment sale 1,52¢ 1,90¢ 222 70& 4,35¢ — 4,35¢
Operating profit (loss 21,37: 18,21¢ 1,192 4,52 45,30¢ (6,384 38,92:
Assets 331,67: 248,58: 123,80( 27,55¢ 731,60¢ 35,10 766,71:
First Half 201C
Sales to external custome $416,90° $141,24( $ 28,83 $33,87¢ $620,85! $ 172 $621,02¢
Intersegment sale 861 6,684 177 1,311 9,03: — 9,03:
Operating profit (loss 17,71 11,83¢ 4,231 3,07¢ 36,85¢ (3,151) 33,70:%
Assets 330,71: 219,73¢ 99,13¢ 25,56¢ 675,15! 40,31 715,46¢

Note G — Stock-based Compensation Expense

The Company granted approximately 13,000 sharesstrficted stock to its non-employee directordhin t
second quarter 2011 at a fair market value of $Bpe8 share. The fair value was determined usiaeglitsing price
of the Company’s stock on the grant date and weilatnortized over the vesting period of one year.

The Company granted approximately 78,000 sharesstrficted stock to certain employees in the second
quarter 2011 at a fair value of $39.30 per sharmtléer 5,000 shares of restricted stock was graotad employee
in the second quarter 2011 at a fair value of $86& share. The fair value was determined usieglibsing price
of the Companys stock on the grant date and will be amortized thee vesting period of three years. The holde!
the restricted stock will forfeit their shares shibtneir employment be terminated prior to the efthe vesting
period.

The Company granted approximately 148,000 stockempgtion rights (SARS) to certain employees in the
second quarter 2011 at a strike price of $39.3Gpare. The fair value of the SARs, which was aeiteed on the
grant date using a Black-Scholes model, was $2ie4 8hare and will be amortized over the vestinggeof three
years. The SARs expire ten years from the datheofjtant

Total stock-based compensation expense for theeadod previously existing awards and plans was
$1.2 million in the second quarter 2011 and $1.Maniin the second quarter 2010. For the firsf lo&the year, the
stock-based compensation expense was $2.2 mili@d11 and $2.0 million in 2010.

The Company received $0.7 million for the exerafapproximately 50,000 shares in the first half611 and
$0.9 million for the exercise of approximately 4100shares in the first half of 2010. Approximat@]@00 stock
appreciation rights were exercised in the first bAR011 as well.
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Note H — Other-net

Other-net expense for the second quarter andnié§2011 and 2010 is summarized as follows:

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Exchange/translation gain (los $ (6749 $ 24€ $(1,019 $ (307)
Amortization of intangible asse (1,509 (1,555 (3,019 (3,05))
Metal consignment fee (2,670 (1,265) (4,799 (2,440
Derivative ineffectivenes — — — (489)
Other items (2117) (372) 10z (744)
Total $(5,069)  $(2,946 $(8,73YH  $(7,03))
Note | — Income Taxes

The tax expense of $6.4 million in the second qua011 was calculated by applying a rate of 3lagf#inst
income before income taxes while the tax expen&Sdf million in the second quarter 2010 was cal@ad by
applying a rate of 30.7% against the income befareme taxes in that period. In the first half 612, the tax
expense of $12.0 million was calculated by applymate of 31.9% against income before income tdrdbe first
half of 2010, a rate of 36.9% was applied agaimsbine before income taxes to calculate the expeinse
$12.0 million.

The differences between the statutory and effectites in the second quarter and first half of 2édd 2010
were due to the impact of the production deductp@ncentage depletion, foreign source income addamns,
executive compensation, state and local taxes &t tactors.

In addition, the tax expense in the first half 6 included a discrete item of $1.4 million foe treduction in
deferred tax asset. The asset was reduced aslaafethe Patient Protection and Affordable Card,As amended
by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Abis legislation eliminates the income tax deturctelated to
prescription drug benefits provided to retirees ggithbursed under the Medicare Part D retiree dulgpidy
program beginning in 2013.

The tax rate in the second quarter and first Ha¥0d 1 was affected by immaterial discrete events.

The effective tax rate was lower in the second tgu®011 than the first quarter 2011 prior to tinpact of any
discrete events. This change in the tax rate didhage a material impact on net income or earnpeyshare in the
second quarter 2011.

Note J — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures and records financial instrtsa their fair values. A fair value hierarchyiged for
those instruments measured at fair value thatndjgishes between assumptions based on marketatestar¢able
inputs) and the Company’s assumptions (unobsenmples). The hierarchy consists of three levels:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets and liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 inputs thateither directly or indirectly observable; and,

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs developed using egisiand assumptions developed by the Companyhwhic
reflect those that a market participant would use.
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The following table summarizes the financial instents measured at fair value in the Consolidatddrige
Sheet as of July 1, 2011:

Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Director¢ deferred compensation investme $ 64z % 64: 9 — 3 —
Foreign currency forward contrac — — — —
Total $ 64z $ 64z $ — % —
Financial Liabilities
Directors’ deferred compensation liabili $ (642) 9 64z $ — % —
Foreign currency forward contrac (2,176 — (2,17€) —
Total $(2,818) % 64z $ (2,17¢) $ —

The Company uses a market approach to value te¢samsd liabilities for outstanding derivative qats in
the table above. Foreign currency forward contramsvalued through models that utilize market olede inputs
including both spot and forward prices for the saméerlying currencies. The carrying values ofdtteer working
capital items and debt on the Consolidated Bal&eet approximate their fair values as of July0l,12

Note K — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

The Company uses derivative contracts to hedgéoperof its foreign currency exposures. The objestiand
strategies for using foreign currency derivativesas follows:

The Company sells products to overseas customéhgiinlocal currencies, primarily the euro and .y€he
Company uses foreign currency derivatives, maiofwéard contracts and options, to hedge these
anticipated sales transactions. The purpose didldge program is to protect against the reductiatollar
value of the foreign currency sales from adverssharge rate movements. Should the dollar strengthen
significantly, the decrease in the translated valuhe foreign currency sales should be partiaffget by
gains on the hedge contracts. Depending upon tiigot® used, the hedge contract may limit the benefi
from a weakening U.S. dollar.

The use of forward contracts locks in a firm ratd aliminates any downside from an adverse rate
movement as well as any benefit from a favoraltie movement. The Company may from time to time
choose to hedge with options or a tandem of optioiesvn as a collar. These hedging techniques aain li
or eliminate the downside risk but can allow fom&oor all of the benefit from a favorable rate moeat

to be realized. Unlike a forward contract, a premis paid for an option; collars, which are a canaltion
of a put and call option, may have a net premiutrthoey can be structured to be cash neutral. The
Company will primarily hedge with forward contrackge to the relationship between the cash outldy an
the level of risk.

The use of foreign currency derivative contractgdgerned by policies approved by the Board of
Directors. A team consisting of senior financialmagers reviews the estimated exposure levels,faede
by budgets, forecasts and other internal datadatermines the timing, amounts and instrumentséotol
hedge that exposure within the confines of thecgoManagement analyzes the effective hedged aags
the actual and projected gains and losses on thgigetransactions against the program objectives,
targeted rates and levels of risk assumed. Hedgeamis are typically layered in at different tinfesa
specified exposure period in order to minimizeithpact of rate movements.




Table of Contents

The Company may also use forward contracts to hislgeecious metal exposures. The Company makitain
the majority of its precious metals used in progucbn a consignment basis. The metal is purchasedf
consignment when it is shipped to the customertaagurchase price forms the basis for the prideetoharged to
the customer. This allows for changes in the mapkiees of the precious metals in either directinbe passed
through to the customer and reduces the impactgasain prices could have on the Company’s margids a
operating profit. However, in certain circumstandae Company may elect to purchase precious mietaeet a
portion of its production requirements. The Comparay then hedge the price exposure on this inveripr
securing a forward contract. The gain or loss enftiiward contract from movements in the marketewill
generally offset the gain or loss on the dispositbthe metal. The use of precious metal derieationtracts is also
governed by policies approved by the Board of Roecand monitored by a group of senior financiahagers.

The Company will only enter into a derivative catrif there is an underlying identified exposuentracts
are typically held until maturity. The Company does engage in derivative trading activities anésinot use
derivatives for speculative purposes. The Companty wses currency hedge contracts that are dendedinia the
same currency as the underlying exposure.

All derivatives are recorded on the balance shitbtedr fair values. If the derivative is desigrshtend effective
as a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair valtkeoflerivative are recognized in other comprehenisivome (OCI
until the hedged item is recognized in earning® ifleffective portion of a derivative’s fair valuéany, is
recognized in earnings immediately. If a derivaisv@ot a hedge, changes in the fair value arestetjuthrough
income. The fair values of the outstanding denxestiare recorded on the balance sheet as asdbis di¢rivatives
are in a gain position) or liabilities (if the deatives are in a loss position). The fair value also be classified as
short-term or long-term depending upon their matudates.

The outstanding foreign currency forward contréetd a notional value of $36.5 million as of Juh2@11. All
of these contracts were designated as and effeasieash flow hedges. There was no ineffectiveasssciated wit
the outstanding currency contracts. The fair valuinese contracts was recorded on the balance abeé July 1,
2011 as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fair
Debit (credit) Value
Other liabilities and accrued iter $(2,059)
Other lon¢-term liabilities (119
Total $(2,17¢)

10
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A summary of the hedging relationships of the @utding derivative financial instruments designasdash
flow hedges as of July 1, 2011 and July 2, 2010theacamounts transferred into income for the secpradter and
first half then ended is as follows:

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended
July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Thousands) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Derivative in cash flow hedging relationst Foreign Currenc Foreign Currenc Foreign Currenc Foreign Currenc

Forward Contrac Forward Contrac Forward Contrac Forward Contrac
Effective portion of hedge
Gain (loss) recognized in OCI at the end of the

period $ (2,17¢) $ 80<
Location of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI int

income Othel-nei Other-nei Other-nel Other-nel
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into

income $ (625) $ 39 % (1,235) % 38¢

Ineffective portion of hedge and amounts exclude
from effectiveness testin
Location of gain (loss) recognized in income on
derivative Other-net Other-nel Other-nel Other-nel
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in income on
derivative $ — 3 — 3 —  $ =

The Company secured a debt obligation with an exiddopper derivative in October 2009. The denveati
provided an economic hedge for the Company’s coppentory against movements in the market priceapiper.
However, the derivative did not qualify as a hefigeaccounting purposes and changes in its fairevalere charge
against income in the period as incurred. In the §uarter 2010, the Company secured forward aotstito reduce
the variability of the charges against income dumbvements in the derivative’s fair value. Theffiegtiveness on
the embedded derivative and the forward contrastzeso in the second quarter 2010 and a net $0liBmexpens:
in the first half of 2010 and was recorded in othet on the Consolidated Statements of Income faitveard
contract and the embedded copper derivative oustgrat the end of the second quarter 2010 maiuard third
quarter of 2010. There was no derivative ineffeati®ss recorded in the second quarter or firstdi&@011.

During the first quarter 2011, the Company secaréatward contract to sell a specified quantitygofd. The
contract served as an economic hedge of gold psechand held in inventory for use in manufactupnaducts for
sale in the normal course of business. No hedggrsfon was assigned to the contract. The coninattired in th
first quarter 2011 and resulted in a loss of $0illan that was recorded in cost of sales on thesadidated
Statements of Income.

The Company expects to relieve $2.1 million froml@@d charge other-net on the Consolidated Statenuoén
Income in the twelve month period beginning Jul2@]1.

11
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Item 2. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of
Operations

Overview

We are an integrated producer of high performadearced engineered materials used in a varietjeofreal,
electronic, thermal and structural applicationsr @wducts are sold into numerous markets, inciydionsumer
electronics, defense and science, industrial comisrand commercial aerospace, energy, automadégeanics,
telecommunications infrastructure, medical and iappk.

Sales of $424.7 million in the second quarter 2€dtablished a record high, surpassing the priardeset in
the first quarter 2011 by 13%. We have establisted quarterly sales records in five of the mosenésix quarter:
Sales in the second quarter 2011 were also 30%htbhn sales in the second quarter 2010.

The sales growth in the second quarter 2011 wasodaeombination of improved demand from a nundfer
markets (particularly automotive electronics, irttias components and commercial aerospace, medichenergy),
higher metal pass-through prices and pricing itivtes.

Gross margin of $62.7 million in the second qua2@&tl was a $6.8 million improvement over the sdcon
quarter 2010, as a portion of the margin benefitsfthe higher sales volume and improved pricing oféset by
start-up costs associated with the new berylliuaiifg, higher manufacturing overhead costs anaépfhctors.

Various expenses were higher in the second quaitet compared to the second quarter 2010, incluttiag
legal and marketing costs associated with the rergaof the company, metal consignment fees (péytdale to the
increased market prices of precious metals), ragré plan expenses (driven by the lower discouetanad other
factors) and other items.

Operating profit was a solid $20.8 million in trecend quarter 2011, a slight improvement over ghexating
profit of $20.5 million in the second quarter 20Barnings per share of $0.67 was unchanged betoyueaters.

During the second quarter 2011, we entered inteva$8.0 million long-term debt facility that is dgsed to
finance capital expenditures in the state of O8ighsequent to the end of the second quarter, watiatzl a new
five-year revolving credit agreement that provideseased borrowing capacity and more flexible tethan the
former agreement.

We finalized the settlement of a chronic beryllidinease case early in the second quarter 201hfor a
immaterial amount. As a result, we do not have@mgnic beryllium disease litigation pending agaimssas of the
end of the second quarter 2011.

Results of Operations

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Millions, except per share data) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Sales $ 4247 $ 325.¢ $ 7995 $ 621.(
Operating profit 20.¢ 20.t 38.¢ 33.7
Income before income tax 20.2 19.¢ 37.7 32.4
Net income 13.¢ 13.7 25.7 20.4
Diluted earnings per sha $ 067 $ 067 $ 12 $ 1.0C

Saleswere $424.7 million in the second quarter 201lingorovement of $98.8 million, or 30%, over sales of
$325.9 million in the second quarter 2010. Forfitet six months of the year, sales grew 29% fr@®@2350 million
in 2010 to $799.5 million in 2011. Sales have inyaabover the corresponding quarter in the prior y@aseven
consecutive quarters.

Sales to a number of markets were higher in therskquarter 2011 than the second quarter 2010. iewe
shipments to theonsumer electronics market , our largest market, were relatively unchangeithinsecond quarter
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2011 from the second quarter 2010 after having greignificantly over the prior five quartei3efense and science
shipments were also relatively unchanged betwegodgse

Sales to théndustrial components and commercial aerospace market grew at a double-digit rate in the second
quarter 2011 over the second quarter 2010.

Automotive electronics market sales were approximately 30% higher in the secarattgr 2011 than the second
quarter 2010 due to continued strong demand fromedtic and foreign customers.

Sales to théelecommunications infrastructure market, one of our smaller markets, grew approxétga20% in
the second quarter 2011 over the second quart€ @@1he strength of shipments for undersea apjaita

Sales to thenergy, medical and other markets also contributed to the sales growth in the secpradter 2011
over the second quarter 2010.

Total sales order entry, while slightly higher tttha first quarter 2011, was approximately 5% lotian sales
in the second quarter 2011. Order entry had excksales for the prior seven consecutive quartendeiCentry in
the second quarter and first half of 2011 was Hhigfmen the comparable periods of 2010.

Sales also grew in the second quarter 2011 anfirshdalf of 2011 over the respective periodsha prior year
due to the pastirrough of higher metal prices. We use gold, sjlpéatinum, palladium, copper and ruthenium in
manufacture of various products. Our sales areigfficby the prices for these metals, as changegripurchase
prices are passed on to our customers in the fofmgber or lower selling prices. The net averagegs between
periods for these metals increased during the skgoarter and first half of 2011 over the respecpieriods in
2010. The net impact of the change in metal pneas an estimated $63.0 million increase in salésersecond
quarter 2011 from the second quarter 2010 andtanasd $107.5 million increase in sales in thstfivalf of 2011
from the first half of 2010.

Domestic sales improved 35% in the second quaé@tet 2nd 34% in the first half of 2011 over the canaple
periods in 2010. Domestic sales include the majarfithe increase in the metal price pass-througkrnational
sales grew 19% in the second quarter 2011 and @Sbeifirst half of 2011 over the same periods0a®
International sales were 26% of total sales irfitlsé half of 2011 and 29% of total sales in thastfhalf of 2010.
European sales grew 35% in the first half of 20dd accounted for the majority of the internatiosales growth
during that time period. Sales to Asia grew 4%hia first half of 2011 over the first half of 2010.

Gross marginwas $62.7 million, or 15% of sales, in the secoundrtgr 2011 compared to $55.9 million, or 1
of sales, in the second quarter 2010. For thedixsinonths of 2011, gross margin was $118.5 nmiJlem
improvement of $13.3 million from the $105.2 miliof margin generated in the first half of 20100& margin
was 15% of sales in the first half of 2011 and 10f%ales in the first half of 2010.

Gross margin in the second quarter and first HaM0d 1 benefitted from higher sales volumes, higigdling
prices in portions of our business and improvedagey efficiencies and machine utilization dudhe higher
production volumes. The change in product mix, Whiad been favorable in the first quarter 2011, drad
immaterial impact on the second quarter 2011 mardytargins in the first quarter 2010 had been reduxy lower
than expected manufacturing yields on welded prizdaicthe Elmore, Ohio facility. The causes ofltweer yields
were identified and resolved in subsequent quaine2810.

These margin benefits were partially offset in$beond quarter and first half of 2011 by highetsasd
inefficiencies associated with the start-up ofrilegv beryllium facility. While the major pieces ajilegpment were in
place, we incurred additional costs for testinggfjgipment and bringing it up on line. Higher scrajes on certain
nickel products also reduced margins in the fiedf bf 2011.

Manufacturing overhead costs were only 1% highehénsecond quarter 2011 than the second quari€r A
7% higher in the first half of 2011 than the finstif of 2010. The increase in overhead costs iffiteehalf of 2011
was due to the cost of investments to supportdineot and projected growth in the business, onggsupport costs
for the new beryllium facility and other factorss#t in part by various cost savings.
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We recorded a $1.4 million benefit as the estimatedgin impact of the projected depletion of a-lasfirst
out (LIFO) inventory layer associated with the setquarter 2010. We also recorded a $1.6 millideQ benefit in
the first quarter 2010. There was no corresponbderefit recorded in the second quarter or first tia2011.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expengetaled $34.0 million in the second quarter 2011, a
increase of $3.4 million over the total expens&3#.6 million in the second quarter 2010. SG&A exg®s in the
first six months of 2011 were $65.7 million, or &#¥tsales, compared to $61.0 million, or 10% of saie the first
six months of 2010.

Legal, administrative and marketing costs assodiadéh changing the company’s name totaled $1.lianiin
the second quarter 2011 and $2.7 million in thet fialf of 2011. We anticipate that we will incuiditional
expenses for this program in the second half ofl2B0it not to the same extent as in the first bbthe year.

Incentive compensation expense under cash-bases wks $0.2 million lower in the second quarter2itan
the second quarter 2010 and $1.4 million loweh@first half of 2011 than the first half of 2010edto differences
in the levels of projected profitability relative the plan targets.

Stock-based compensation expense was $0.2 milighehin the second quarter and first half of 2€idn the
comparable periods in 2010.

The expense under the domestic defined benefiigeptan was $0.6 million higher in the second ¢gra2011
than the second quarter 2010 and $1.1 million highthe first half of 2011 than the first half 2010. The
increased cost was due to a change in the discatmtthe performance of the plan assets and attiearial and
demographic factors. The cost increase was dividiedarily between SG&A expense and cost of saléseXringe
benefit costs, including costs associated withdhig(k) savings plan, were higher in the secondtqua011 than tt
second quarter 2010.

Corporate expenses, including various legal compéaand related costs, information technology caststhe
costs of other initiatives designed to improve ldegn efficiencies and profitability, were higherthe second
quarter and first half of 2011 than the correspogdgieriods in 2010.

Various sales-related expenses increased withigfnrehsales volume in the first half of 2011 aslwel

Research and development (R&D) expensese $2.7 million in the second quarter 2011 corapao
$1.8 million in the second quarter 2010. R&D exmanaf $5.1 million in the first half of 2011 wer#.6 million
higher than the expense of $3.5 million in thetfiralf of 2010. R&D activities have increased ie first half of
2011 in order to help support our growth opporiesit

Other-net expenswas $5.1 million in the second quarter 2011 congp&we$2.9 million for the second quarter
2010. For this first half of the year, other-neperse totaled $8.7 million in 2011 and $7.0 millinr2010. See
Note H to the Consolidated Financial Statementsiferdetails of the major componentsother-net expense.

The metal consignment fee was $1.4 million highethe second quarter 2011 and $2.4 million high¢hé
first half of 2011 than the respective periods@i@ largely due to the increased value of the ptexcmetal on han
The additional copper pounds held under consignmne2®11 contributed to the higher fee as well.

Exchange and translation gains and losses arectidarof the movement in the value of the U.S. alollersus
certain other currencies and in relation to thiketprices in currency hedge contracts.

The amortization of intangible assets of $1.5 wilin the second quarter 2011 and $3.0 milliorhinftrst half
of 2011 were relatively unchanged from the respegberiods in the prior year.

The derivative ineffectiveness expense of $0.5ionilin the first half of 2010 resulted from movertem the
fair values of copper derivatives that did not ifydbr hedge accounting. These instruments maturéad10 and
there was no ineffectiveness associated with th&tanding derivatives in the first half of 2011.

Other-net also includes bad debt expense, gainfasds on the disposal of fixed assets, cashulss@nd
other miscellaneous items.
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Operating profitwas $20.8 million in the second quarter 2011 corghéo $20.5 million in the second quarter
2010 as the margin benefits from the higher sabfisnves and other factors were predominately offgahe
costs of the new beryllium facility, the costs asated with the company name change, higher reérgrenefit
plan costs, differences in the LIFO inventory béreafd other items. Operating profit was $38.9 imrillin the first
half of 2011, an improvement of $5.2 million ovhetoperating profit of $33.7 million in the firsalfiof 2010.

Interest expense — neif $0.6 million in the second quarter 2011 was dalightly from the net expense of
$0.7 million in the second quarter 2010. For thst faalf of the year, interest expense-net was fillfbn in 2011
and $1.3 million in 2010. Average debt levels waightly lower in the second quarter 2011 thangbeond quarter
2010 and the average effective borrowing rate wagi by a minor amount. Interest on capital leasas higher in
the second quarter and first half of 2011 tharnctreesponding periods of 2010.

Theincome before income taxemndthe income tax expender the second quarter and first half of 2011 and
2010 were as follows:

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended
July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Dollarsin millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Income before income tax $ 20z $ 19¢ $ 377 $ 324
Income tax expens 6.4 6.1 12.C 12.C
Effective tax rate 31.2% 30.7% 31.% 36.9%

The effects of the production deduction, percentisetion, executive compensation, foreign sourceme
and deductions and other items were major factorthe difference between the effective and stayutates in the
second quarter and first half of 2011 and 2010.

The tax expense of $12.0 million in the first sinmths of 2010 also included a discrete item of $ildon
recorded in the first quarter 2010 for the reductid a deferred tax asset as a result of the Raierection and
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @aceEducation Reconciliation Act. Beginning in 200/ will
no longer be able to claim an income tax dedudtomrescription drug benefits provided to ournextis and
reimbursed under the Medicare Part D retiree dabgisly program. While this tax increase does rice &ffect unti
2013, accounting standards require that the caywyaue of a deferred tax asset be adjusted ipehied in which
legislation changing the applicable tax law is ¢@dc

There were no material discrete events recordéukisecond quarter or first half of 2011.

Net incomewas $13.9 million (or $0.67 per share, diluteddhie second quarter 2011 compared to net income
of 13.7 million (or $0.67 per share, diluted) ire thecond quarter 2010. For the first half of 201kt ,income was
$25.7 million (or $1.23 per share, diluted) versasincome of $20.4 million (or $1.00 per sharéytdd) in the first
half of 2010.

Segment Results

Changing our name from Brush Engineered Materiadstb Materion Corporation in the first quarted2@id
not alter our senior management structure or h@xcttief operating decision maker evaluates theopadnce of
our businesses. We continue to have the samedportable segments as we had previously with nogghan their
make up or reporting structure, although the namhd¢isose segments were changed effective withaherting of
the 2010 year-end results. Advanced Material Teldgies and Services was renamed Advanced Material
Technologies, Specialty Engineered Alloys was ckdrtg Performance Alloys, Beryllium and Beryllium
Composites was shortened to Beryllium and Compgsited Engineered Material Systems was changed to
Technical Materials.

Results by segment are depicted in Note F to thes@lated Financial Statements. The results faekian
Services Inc. (formerly known as BEM Services, Jna.wholly owned subsidiary that provides admmaigte and
financial services on a cost-plus basis to oth@suwrithin the organization, and other corporatsts@re included in
the All Other column of our segment reporting.
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The operating loss within All Other was $1.4 mitlibigher in the second quarter 2011 than the seqoader
2010 and $3.2 million higher in the first half @@L than the first half of 2010. The increased loghe quarter and
first half of the year was due to a combinatiorasts associated with the company name changelih higher
legal compliance costs, increased wages and d#msioffset in part by lower incentive compensatitme
comparison for the first half of the year was affected by the $0.5 million of derivative ineffeetness recorded
the first quarter 2010.

Advanced Material Technologies

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Sales $287.¢ $213.¢ $543.¢ $416.¢
Operating profit 10.7 9.2 21.4 17.7

Advanced Material Technologiemanufactures precious, non-precious and speciatalmroducts, including
vapor deposition targets, frame lid assemblies] alad precious metal preforms, high temperatureebnzaterials,
ultra-fine wire, advanced chemicals, optics, perfance coatings and microelectronic packages. Tpreskicts are
used in wireless, semiconductor, photonic, hybnid ather microelectronic applications within thexsomer
electronics and telecommunications infrastructusekets. Other key markets for these products irechaddical,
defense and science, energy and industrial compengdvanced Material Technologies also has métaining
operations and in-house refineries that allow lierieclaim of precious metals from internally gated or
customers’ scrap. This segment has domestic fasiiih New York, Connecticut, Wisconsin, New Mexico
Massachusetts and California and internationalifi@si in Asia and Europe.

Sales from Advanced Material Technologies of $287ilBon in the second quarter 2011 were 34% highan
sales of $213.9 million in the second quarter 20dtlle sales of $543.9 million in the first half 2011 were
$127.0 million, or 30%, higher than sales of $41@iBion in the first half of 2010.

Advanced Material Technologies adjusts its selfirniges daily to reflect the current cost of thegiwas and
certain other metals that are sold. The cost ofriteal is generally a pass-through to the cust@mdra margin is
generated on the fabrication efforts irrespectiivéne type or cost of the metal used in a giverliagfon.
Therefore, the cost and mix of metals sold wileaffsales but not necessarily the margins genebgtétbse sales.
The prices of gold, silver, platinum and palladiwre higher on average in the second quarter astchilf of 201:
than the respective periods in 2010. The higheahpeice pass-through increased sales by an estimat
$57.7 million in the second quarter 2011 and $%Tilon in the first half of 2011.

Sales of products manufactured at the Buffalo, Nenk facility, including targets, lids and wire, vee
relatively unchanged in the second quarter 201 fitee second quarter 2010 after adjusting for cearirgthe met
prices. The order entry level, after growing foruanber of periods, started to slow down in the sdaguarter 2011.
Sales of these products were higher in the firftdi®2011 over the first half of 2010 with thatagvth due to the
increased demand for wireless, handset, semicomidact other microelectronic applications from ¢hasumer
electronics and defense markets.

Sales from the Albuquerque, New Mexico facility,iefhwas acquired in the first quarter 2010, showed
significant growth in the second quarter 2011 dsssir architectural glass applications within émergy market
and sales of other products to the industrial campts market improved. This growth was also pdytialjewelry
and other miscellaneous forms that typically geteelaver margins.

Refining revenue increased in the second quartkfiest half of 2011 as a result of additional niétebe
reclaimed in the supply chain. Sales for head apptins within the data storage sector of the coesielectronics
market, after showing modest improvement in th&t fjuarter 2011, slowed down in the second quagt.

Sales of microelectronic packages, one of this sefsmsmaller product offerings, declined in theswl
quarter and first half of 2011 from very high lev@ the comparable periods in 2010. This declias expected dt
to changes in technology within the telecommunaregiinfrastructure market.
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Advanced chemical sales grew at double-digit ratélse second quarter and first half of 2011 ober t
respective periods in the prior year largely dugrtmnvth from traditional applications, includingnsieonductors an
security. These materials are also used in LERysoiergy and other applications. The order ety for advance
chemical products remained solid throughout thet fialf of 2011.

Sales of large area specialty coatings, primarigcipus metal coated polymer films, showed soligriovemen
in the second quarter 2011 and first half of 20¢drdhe corresponding periods in the prior yeae glowth was
largely due to improved sales to the medical maN&t continued to develop new applications for ¢hesiterials i
the medical, energy and other markets.

Precision optic sales improved in the second quafig#l over the second quarter 2010 but were $iddwver
in the first half of 2011 than the first half of 2 These products are sold into the medical, defand science and
other markets. Demand for traditional science awpdspace applications softened in the first Ha20d 1 partially
due to reductions and delays in government funding.

The order entry rate was essentially equal to shlegsg the first half of 2011 for this segment.

The gross margin on sales by Advanced Material i@lclyies was $31.4 million (11% of sales) in theoswl
quarter 2011 versus $27.4 million (13% of saleghesecond quarter 2010. Gross margin of $60.komih the
first half of 2011 was a $6.0 million improvemeneo the gross margin of $54.5 million generatethinfirst half o
2010. The gross margin was 11% of sales in theHal of 2011 and 13% of sales in the first hdl2610.

The growth in the margin dollars in the second tpré2011 and the first half of 2011 was predomilyadee to
the net higher sales volumes. The change in pradictvas slightly favorable in the second quart@t 2 but was
slightly unfavorable in the first half of 2011. Ribe first half of the year, manufacturing overheadts were
$1.7 million higher in 2011 than 2010. The increasthese costs was partially due to the highedpction
volumes. Gross margin as a percent of sales wasr limwthe second quarter and first half of 201 tthe
comparable periods in 2010 partially as a resuthefincreased metal price pass-through in sales.

SG&A, R&D and other-net expenses for this segmesrev$20.7 million in the second quarter 2011 (7% of
sales) compared to $18.1 million (8% of saleshandecond quarter 2010. These expenses totaletl $88on (7%
of sales) in the first half of 2011, an increas&®f3 million from expenses of $36.8 million (9%safles) in the first
half of 2010.

A significant portion of the higher expenses is thuéhe precious metal consignment fee. Theseviees
$1.1 million higher in the second quarter and $tilfion higher in the first half of 2011 than thespective periods
of 2010 mainly due to the increased value of matahand. R&D expenses increased throughout 201 todbigher
activity levels. Corporate charges and incentivagensation expense, after being relatively unchéigéne first
quarter 2011 compared to the first quarter 201€remsed in the second quarter 2011 over the sepgarter 2010.

Operating profit from Advanced Material Technolagieas $10.7 million in the second quarter 2011 camexb
to $9.2 million in the second quarter 2010. Opeagaprofit was $21.4 million in the first half of 20, an
improvement of $3.7 million over the operating firof $17.7 million in the first half of 2010. Opeging profit was
4% of sales in the first half of 2011 and 2010.

Performance Alloys

Second Quarter

Ended First Half Ended
July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Sales $96.¢€ $77.¢ $181.1 $141.2
Operating profit 9.t 8.t 18.2 11.¢

Performance Alloysmanufactures and sells three main product families:

Strip products, the larger of the product families, include thauge precision strip and thin diameter rod and
wire. These copper and nickel alloys provide a doation of high conductivity, high reliability arfdrmability for
use as connectors, contacts, switches, relayshaeldisg. Major markets for strip products incluctensumer
electronics, telecommunications infrastructurepmgtive electronics, appliance and medical;
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Bulk productsare copper and nickel-based alloys manufactur@thiie, rod, bar, tube and other customized
forms that, depending upon the application, mayigesuperior strength, corrosion or wear resigattermal
conductivity or lubricity. While the majority of liuproducts contain beryllium, a growing portiontaflk products’
sales is from non-beryllium-containing alloys agsult of product diversification efforts. Appligans for bulk
products include oil and gas exploration and extvtaccomponents, bearings, bushings, welding rpldstic mold
tooling, and undersea telecommunications housingpetent; and,

Beryllium hydroxideis produced at our milling operations in Utah froor bertrandite mine and purchased
beryl ore. The hydroxide is used primarily as a raaterial input for strip and bulk products andatiesser extent,
by the Beryllium and Composites segment. Saleydfdxide are also made on a limited basis.

Strip and bulk products are manufactured at fadlin Ohio and Pennsylvania and are distributed
internationally through a network of company-owsetvice centers and outside distributors and agents

Sales by Performance Alloys of $96.6 million in #ezond quarter 2011 were a 24% improvement oVes si
$77.9 million in the second quarter 2010. Sale®1&1.1 million in the first half of 2011 were $3%8llion, or 28%
higher than sales of $141.2 million in the first sionths of 2010.

Sales of both strip and bulk products improvechmgecond quarter and first half of 2011 over ¢vels in the
respective periods of 2010.

Sales to the automotive electronics and industoaiponents and commercial aerospace markets grew at
double-digit rates in the second quarter and fiadt of 2011 over the comparable periods in 20He$Sto the
telecommunications infrastructure market, includimglersea applications, also have grown at doubgierdtes in
the first half of 2011 over the first half of 201®ales to the appliance market were relativelyifidhe first half of
2011 versus the first half of 2010.

Sales to the consumer electronics market decligeairhodest amount in the second quarter 2011 beer t
second quarter 2010 and were approximately 4% highée first half of 2011 than the first half 2§10. The
growth in the first half of the year was fueledpart by solid demand for our strip materials in grpaones and
other hand held devices.

Shipments of strip products were 4% higher in #ead quarter 2011 than the second quarter 2013%nd
higher in the first half of 2011 than the firsthal 2010. Shipments of thin diameter rod and wia&e been strong
during the first half of 2011, while the higher ¥éum-containing strip products improved during the secquarte
2011 over the second quarter 2010 and first quaftet.

Shipments of bulk products grew 13% in the secarattgr 2011 over the second quarter 2010 afteriggppw
19% in the first quarter 2011 over the first qua@10. The non-beryllium-containing bulk produlstsre grown at
double-digit rates in the first half of 2011 oveeffirst half of 2010.

Beryllium hydroxide sales totaled $3.3 million hretsecond quarter and $4.5 million in the firsf b&2011.
Sales of beryllium hydroxide were $4.2 million hetfirst half of 2010, all of which occurred in teecond quarter
of that year.

The pass-through of higher metal prices accourtedr estimated $5.3 million of the $18.7 millioffefence
in sales between the second quarter 2011 and ¢tbadeguarter 2010 and $9.2 million of the $39.9iaril
difference in sales between the first six month8G#f1 and the first six months of 2010.

The order entry rate for Performance Alloys slowledn in the second quarter 2011 from the very kgl in
the first quarter 2011 and was lower than saleagproximately 17% in the second quarter. Partisfslowdown
may be due to an inventory correction in the coresuatectronics market.

The gross margin on sales from Performance Allogs $22.2 million (23% of sales) in the second aurart
2011 compared to $19.5 million (25% of sales) m$kcond quarter 2010. The gross margin was $4illiémin
the first half of 2011, an improvement of $6.9 ioill over the gross margin of $34.6 million genedatethe first
half of 2010. Gross margin was 23% of sales irfitisehalf of 2011 and 25% of sales in the firsifwd 2010.

The growth in the gross margin dollars in the selaguarter and first half of 2011 over the respecperiods of
2010 was mainly due to the higher sales and pramugblumes. Pricing changes have also contribtdetie
margin improvement while the change in product mas favorable in both the second quarter andHaftof 2011
These margin benefits were partially offset by loyields and higher scrap rates on nickel-contajnin
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products in the first half of 2011. Improvementsevmade in the second quarter 2011, but the y&tbsmremained
lower than historical levels. The lower yields nidggly impacted costs, but did not affect sales.

The previously discussed LIFO inventory benefi$df4 million in the second quarter and $3.0 millfonthe
first half of 2010 were recorded against Perforneafitoys’ gross margin. No similar benefit was reded in the
second quarter and first half of 2011.

Total SG&A, R&D and other-net expenses were $12lifam (13% of sales) in the second quarter 201ksue
$11.0 million (14% of sales) in the second qua2@t0. For the first half of 2011, these expenstded
$23.3 million (13% of sales) compared to $22.8imill(16% of sales) in the first half of 2010.

Differences in foreign currency exchange gainslasses accounted for the majority of the differeincthe
expense levels in the second quarter and firstdi&g®11 and the comparable periods in 2010. R&Engng grew
throughout the first half of 2011 as well. Incertompensation was slightly higher in the secoraitgu2011 than
the second quarter 2010, but was $0.7 million lowehe first half of 2011 than it was in the fitsilf of 2010 due
to differences in actual performance versus the faegets.

Performance Alloys generated an operating prof#@®@b million in the second quarter 2011 compaced t
$8.5 million in the second quarter 2010. Operafimafit improved from $11.8 million in the first Hadf 2010 to
$18.2 million in the first half of 2011. The $6.4lipn improvement was due to the margin benefinfrthe higher
sales volume and improved pricing offset in parti®y lower yields on nickel products and the insesim expenses.
Operating profit was 10% of sales in the first ladl2011 and 8% of sales in the first half of 2010.

Beryllium and Composites
Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Sales $17.7 $15.7 $31.7 $28.¢
Operating profit 1.1 2.1 1.2 4.2

Beryllium and Compositemanufactures beryllium-based metals and metal rmedmposites in rod, sheet, folil
and a variety of customized forms at the ElImorep@Ind Fremont, California facilities. These maksriare used in
applications that require high stiffness and/or temsity and they tend to be premium-priced dubed unique
combination of properties. This segment also mastufas beryllia ceramics produced at the Tucsoizofa
facility. Defense and science is the largest maideBeryllium and Composites, while other marksgsved include
industrial components and commercial aerospaceicaleénergy and telecommunications infrastructBreducts
are also sold for acoustics and optical scannimpdjegiions.

Sales by Beryllium and Composites were $17.7 mmilliothe second quarter 2011 versus $15.7 millotné
second quarter 2010. Sales of $31.7 million infittst half of 2011 were 10% higher than sales d&.82nillion in
the first half of 2010.

The majority of the sales growth in the second tguamnd first half of the year was due to highépstents to
the industrial components market, including non-ivedk-ray window applications, from the Fremont faciligale:
in the second quarter 2011 for traditional appita within the defense and science market, whilepproximatel
40% over the first quarter 2011, were still 4% letbe second quarter 2010. Sales of beryllia cersutoi the
telecommunications infrastructure market improvgdrtinor amounts in the second quarter and firdtdfa2011
versus the comparable periods in 2010. Sales tm#uical market in the first half of 2011 were tislaly
unchanged from the first half of 2010.

The order entry rate in the second quarter 201ileviigher than the second quarter 2010 and teedinarter
2011, was still below the level of sales in theosetquarter 2011.

Beryllium and Composites generated a gross marfghd @ million (25% of sales) in the second quag@et1
and $5.1 million (33% of sales) in the second qre2010. Segment gross margin of $7.5 million mfitst half of
2011 was $1.9 million lower than the gross mardifi®4 million in the first half of 2010. Gross ngan was 24% ¢
sales in the first half of 2011 and 33% of salethanfirst half of 2010.

Gross margin was reduced approximately $1.1 milliothe second quarter 2011 and $2.2 million infiiss
half of 2011 as a result of additional costs arefficiencies associated with the start-up of the beryllium
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facility at the ElImore plant site. Major constructiof the facility has been completed, but we inediadditional
costs for supplies, maintenance and other itermgeasorked to bring the equipment on line and resalther
start-up challenges. The plant is designed to pregwre beryllium metal from beryllium hydroxidedaih did
produce a small, non-production level quantity afgoberyllium during the second quarter. Once djmal, the
facility will reduce the need to purchase pure bieny metal from outside suppliers.

The change in product mix was unfavorable in ttomsd quarter and first half of 2011 from the resipec
periods in the prior year as the products solddihl?generated lower contribution margins.

Manufacturing overhead costs were higher in thersgguarter and first half of 2011 than the redpect
periods in 2010, partially due to ongoing normalsart costs for the new facility.

Lower manufacturing yields on welded products a&lsgatively impacted gross margin in the secondtquar
2010. However, process improvements were implendeante yields improved in the second quarter 20Ey the
first quarter 2010.

SG&A, R&D and other-net expenses for Beryllium &@wmposites totaled $3.3 million in the second arart
2011 compared to $3.1 million in the second qua&®di0. For the first half of the year, expensealéat $6.3 millior
(20% of sales) in 2011 and $5.1 million (18% ofsalin 2010.

R&D expenses were higher in the second quartefiestchalf of 2011 than the corresponding perioti2@l0
due to increased activity. Corporate charges wsehagher while incentive compensation expenseloser in the
second quarter and first half of 2011. Differenicesther noneperating items contributed to the higher expease
in the first half of 2011.

Operating profit for Beryllium and Composites wdsImillion in the second quarter 2011, a declifhie o
$1.0 million from the $2.1 million operating proéarned in the second quarter 2010. For the faiétdf the year,
operating profit was $1.2 million in 2011 and $#llion in 2010. Operating profit was 4% of saleghe first half
of 2011 and 15% of sales in the first half of 200@erating profit was lower in the second quartet first half of
2011 than the corresponding periods in 2010 astdrgin benefits from the higher sales volumes weoee than
offset by the plant start-up costs, the unfavorabknge in product mix impact on margins, highgresmses and
other factors.

Technical Materials

Second Quarter Endec First Half Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
(Millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Sales $23.C $18.4 $42.€ $33.¢
Operating profit 2.4 2.C 4.t 3.1

Technical Materialsmanufactures clad inlay and overlay metals, precand base metal electroplated syst:
electron beam welded systems, contour profilecesystand soldectoated metal systems. These specialty strip 1
products provide a variety of thermal, electricahechanical properties from a surface area oiquéat section of
the material. Our cladding and plating capabiliaiew for a precious metal or brazing alloy todmplied to a base
metal only where it is needed, reducing the mdteast to the customer as well as providing defligiibility.

Major applications for these products include canaies, contacts and semiconductors while the lameskets are
automotive electronics and consumer electronics. drfergy and medical markets are smaller but afféner
growth opportunities. Technical Materials’ produate manufactured at the Lincoln, Rhode Islandifgci

Sales from Technical Materials of $23.0 milliortle second quarter 2011 were a 25% improvementsales
of $18.4 million in the second quarter 2010. Fer finst half of the year, sales improved $8.7 moiili or 26%, from
$33.9 million in 2010 to $42.6 million in 2011. 8alhave grown over the comparable quarter in tioe ypear for
seven consecutive quarters.

Sales to the automotive electronics market grewamately 36% in the second quarter 2011 and 45%e
first half of 2011 over the comparable periods@.@ and accounted for the majority of the improvenie
Technical Materials’ sales. Sales to the consuieetrenics market also grew in the second quaféd Dver the
second quarter 2010, although sales for disk dnwe applications, a large application for this segtndeclined.
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Energy market sales softened slightly in the secpradter 2011, but sales to this emerging marke¢ Wigher in th
first half of 2011 than the first half of 2010.

The order entry rate slowed down in the secondtgquafl1l from the high level experienced in thstfijuarter
2011. A portion of the slow down may be due to srakfactors in the marketplace. For the first lodithe year, th
order entry rate was 2% less than sales.

Gross margin on Technical Materials’ sales was $4lon, or 21% of sales, in the second quartet20
compared to $4.3 million, or 23% of sales, in teeomd quarter 2010. Gross margin was $9.3 milliothe first hal
of 2011, an improvement of $2.0 million over thegs margin of $7.3 million in the first half of 2D1Gross margi
was 22% of sales in the first half of 2011 and 2010

The majority of the growth in the gross margintie second quarter and first half of 2011 was dukedigher
sales volume. The change in product mix was skglintfavorable in the second quarter 2011 but wasréble in
the first half of 2011. Manufacturing overhead sdatreased $0.2 million in the second quarterfasthalf of
2011 over the respective periods in 2010.

Total SG&A, R&D and other-net expenses were $2Mianiin the second quarter 2011 and $2.2 milliorihe
second quarter 2010. For the first half of the ydarse expenses totaled $4.8 million in 2011 ahd #illion in
2010. Selling and marketing expenses, includingra@sions and travel, were higher as these expaesdgo vary
with the level of sales. Fringe benefit costs wads® higher in the first half of 2011 than in tivstfhalf of 2010.
This segmens portion of the precious metal consignment fee ligiser in the first half of 2011 than the firstfiaf
2010 due to the increase in metal prices.

Technical Materials generated an operating préf24 million in the second quarter 2011 compdced
$2.0 million in the second quarter 2010. Operafirgfit of $4.5 million in the first half of 2011 we$1.4 million
higher than the operating profit of $3.1 millionthre first half of 2010. Operating profit was 11%sales in the first
half of 2011 and 9% of sales in the first half 6fLR. Operating profit has improved over the coroesiing quarter
in the prior year for six consecutive quarters.

Legal

One of our subsidiaries, Materion Brush Inc. (forip&nown as Brush Wellman Inc.), has been a dedahd
from time to time in proceedings in various statd &ederal courts brought by plaintiffs allegingtlhey have
contracted chronic beryllium disease or other loogditions as a result of exposure to berylliunaimiffs in
beryllium cases seek recovery under negligenceraridus other legal theories and seek compensataihpunitive
damages, in many cases of an unspecified sum. &pafiany, claim loss of consortium.

The following table summarizes the associated #gtivith beryllium cases.

Quarter Ended Quarter Ended

July 1, 2011 Apr. 1,2011
Total cases pendir 0 1
Total plaintiffs 0 3
Number of claims (plaintiffs) filed during periodi@ed 0(0) 0(0)
Number of claims (plaintiffs) settled during perieddec 1(3) 0(0)
Aggregate cost of settlements during period endetafs in thousand: $0 $ 43
Number of claims (plaintiffs) otherwise dismiss 0(0) 1(3)

Although the parties agreed to settle and disrhis®he case shown as pending as of April 1, 201.$48,000
during the first quarter 2011, the court did ngbrawe the settlement and dismiss the case untjt gathe second
quarter 2011.

Should new beryllium claims arise, we would conthstsuits vigorously. Employee cases, in whiclnpifés
have a high burden of proof, have historically ilwved relatively small losses to us. Third-partyipiifs (typically
employees of customers or contractors) face a |ltweten of proof than do employees or former ermgdgy but
these cases are generally covered by varying le¥étsurance.
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Although it is not possible to predict the outcoofi@ny litigation, we provide for costs relatedhese matters
when a loss is probable and the amount is reaspeabimable. Litigation is subject to many uncettiais, and it is
possible that some of these actions could be décidéavorably in amounts exceeding our reservesumfavorable
outcome or settlement of a beryllium case or aoliiti adverse media coverage could encourage themmeonement
of additional similar litigation. We are unabledstimate our potential exposure to unasserted slaim

Based upon currently known facts and assuming cdiéity of insurance, we do not believe that region of
future beryllium proceedings will have a materidarse effect on our financial condition or cagiwil However,
our results of operations could be materially &ffddy unfavorable results in a future case.

Regulatory Matters. Standards for exposure to beryllium are undeiereby the United States Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and by othevernmental and private standard-setting orgaioias.
One result of these reviews will likely be morargjent worker safety standards. Some organizatigmd) as the
California Occupational Health and Safety Admirdtitn and the American Conference of Governmentuistrial
Hygienists, have adopted standards that are manget than the current standards of OSHA. Thelbgment,
proposal or adoption of more stringent standardg aff@ct the buying decisions by the users of bienyl-
containing products. If the standards are made sitbiregent and/oour customers or other downstream users dt
to reduce their use of beryllium-containing produciur operating results, liquidity and financiahdition could be
materially adversely affected. The impact of trogemtial adverse effect would depend on the natoceextent of
the changes to the standards, the cost and albilityeet the new standards, the extent of any riguict customer
use and other factors. The magnitude of this pateadverse effect cannot be estimated.

Financial Position

Net cash used in operating activiti@gas $7.1 million in the first half of 2011 as netome and the effects of
depreciation were more than offset by a net ineré@asvorking capital items, primarily accounts reedle and
inventory. However, cash flow improved in the setgnarter 2011 over the first quarter 2011 as wegdged
$13.7 million of cash from operations in the secqodrter 2011 while having used cash in operatidns
$20.8 million in the first quarter 2011.

Cashbalances were $9.5 million as of the end of theseéaquarter 2011, a decrease of $6.6 million fraary
end 2010.

Accounts receivabléotaled $149.4 million at the end of the secondigu&011, a $10.0 million, or 7%,
increase over the balance as of December 31, ZBE0growth in receivables was largely due to saldke second
quarter 2011 being approximately 19% higher thd@ssa the fourth quarter 2010. The impact of thgghbr sales
volume on the receivable balance was partiallyetffsy an improvement in the average collectionquerihe days
sales outstanding, a measure of how quickly rebéigaare collected, was 32 days as of the endeasebond
quarter 2011, an improvement of three days fronm-ged 2010.

We continue to aggressively monitor and managecdit exposures and the collectability of our reg@bles.
Our bad debt experience remained low as the baideaglense in the first half of 2011 was only $0illiom.

Other receivablesotaling $2.7 million at the end of the second ¢gra2011 and $4.0 million at the end of 2(
primarily represented amounts outstanding for reirebment of equipment purchased under a governtoairact.
The balances at the end of both periods also ieduminor amounts due for other non-trade items.

Inventorieswere $182.4 million as of July 1, 2011 compare#164.5 million as of December 31, 2010. While
inventories grew 18% in the first half of 2011, theentory turnover ratio, a measure of how quidklyentory is
sold on average, improved during this same timegeamnd inventories have not been restocked atdhee rate as
the increase in sales.

The majority of the increase in inventory is infdemance Alloys in response to the higher levail@fand.
Performance Alloys’ pounds in inventory increasgdlB% during the first half of 2011. The high lee¢ldemand
on the factories has also led to longer lead tiamesertain products, which in turn contributedhe increase in
inventory levels.
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Inventories within Advanced Material Technologieew approximately 11% in the first half of 2011.eTh
majority of this segment’s metal requirements aagntained through off-balance sheet financing ayeaments and
the 11% growth is only reflective of the changehia value of owned inventories.

Inventories within Beryllium and Composites incre@d 3% in the first half of 2011 partially due ke tongoin:
start-up of the new beryllium facility and the teld impact on material flow.

Technical Materials’ inventories also showed mimareases in order to support the higher busiressd.
Their inventory turns improved during the firstiafl 2011.

We use the LIFO method for valuing a large portiboour domestic inventories. By so doing, the nresent
cost of various raw materials, including gold, cepand nickel, is charged to cost of sales in tlreent period. The
older, and often times lower, costs are used toevtile inventory on hand. Therefore, current chamngéhe cost of
raw materials subject to the LIFO valuation methagie only a minimal impact on changes in the inmgntarrying
value.

Capital expendituredor the first half of 2011 and 2010 are summariasdollows:

First Half
(Millions) 2011 2010
Capital expenditure $11.1  $24.¢
Mine developmen 0.2 7.4
Subtotal 11.: 32.2
Reimbursement for spending under government car _2.€ 14.¢
Net spending 8.7 $17.:

We have a Title Il contract with the U.S. Departmef Defense (DoD) for the design and developnoérat
new facility for the production of primary beryltiu As noted, the facility was nearing completiorttia first half of
2011. The total cost of the project is estimatedg®95.0 million, with the DoD providing approxitaly 75% of
the funding. The final cost of the project and Er@D’s share will be determined based upon thefsatisry
completion of the final construction items, resmntof any start-up issues and other factors. @agftending on
this project totaled $1.6 million in the first half 2011 and was included within the $11.1 millmfrexpenditures in
the above table. The spending and reimbursemeaitveztfrom the government differed due to the ndtat
between when the spending occurs and the goverrissergs the reimbursement. Reimbursements frorDdieare
recorded as unearned income and included in otingrtlerm liabilities on the Consolidated Balance&h.

Capital expenditures in the first half of 2011 ursbbd $1.5 million for the purchase of a buildinghet EImore
facility that was previously held under an opermgiiease.

The remainder of the capital spending was on iedlaieces of equipment and various infrastructuogepts
across the organization. Major projects undertakeing the first half of 2011 include a new drosslamation
system in EImore, expansion of the refine and dhi&lcleaning operations in Buffalo, expansiorifed Singapore
facility and upgrades to the electron beam weldmgant in Lincoln.

Intangible assetsvere $34.2 million as of the end of the second tguand $36.8 million at year end 2010.
decline was due to the current period amortizatieinof minor additions of deferred financing castsociated with
new debt agreements signed in 2011.

Other liabilities and accrued itemttaled $26.7 million at the end of the second gua&011 compared to
$24.9 million at yeaend 2010. This change is due to an increase ifathealue of derivative financial instrumen
higher fringe benefit accruals and other items.

Unearned revenuewhich is a liability representing products invoidedcustomers but not shipped, was
$2.8 million as of July 1, 2011 and $2.4 millionaiDecember 31, 2010. Revenue and the associaegimwill be
recognized for these transactions when the godgstite passes and all other revenue recognitiiteria are met.
Invoicing in advance of the shipment, which is odbne in certain circumstances, allows us to cottash sooner
than we would otherwise.
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Other lonc-term liabilitieswere $18.1 million as of July 1, 2011, a slightrgwse from the $17.9 million
balance as of year-end 2010. There were no matdrdadges to the individual components of other {tamm
liabilities during the first half of 2011.

Unearned incomevas $59.7 million at the end of the second qua&®drl compared to $57.2 million at year-
end 2010. This balance represents reimbursemamstfre government for equipment purchases for ¢ve n
beryllium facility made under the Title Il prograrmhis liability will be reduced and credited taome ratably witl
the depreciation expense on the equipment.

Theretirement and post-employment bendjalance of $81.6 million at the end of the secomalggr 2011 we
$0.9 million lower than the $82.5 million balandebeecember 31, 2010. This balance representsahgity under
our domestic defined benefit pension plan, theeetmedical plan and other retirement plans antguployment
obligations.

The liability for the domestic pension plan decezha net $1.3 million as a result of the contritwi to the
plan of $3.6 million and an adjustment to other poghensive income, a component of shareholderstyea
$1.7 million offset in part by the expense in thetfhalf of 2011 of $4.0 million.

The liability for the other retirement plans chaddpy minor amounts due to differences between #yengnts
made and the expense recorded during the firsoi@®11 and other factors.

Debttotaled $95.0 million as of the end of the secondrter 2011, an increase of $8.9 million from thizlt
debt of $86.1 million at the end of 2010. Afterrieasing $18.6 million in the first quarter 201¥gkly as a result of
financing capital expenditures, the growth in actsueceivable and inventory and the payment o020dentive
compensation to employees, debt declined $9.7anill the second quarter 2011 on the strengtheoitiproved
cash flow from operations.

Short-term debt, which included domestic and faraigrrency denominated loans, was $39.3 millionfake
end of the second quarter 2011. Ldagn debt was $55.7 million as of the end of theoed quarter 2011. We we
in compliance with all of our debt covenants athefend of the second quarter 2011.

In the second quarter 2011, we entered into a r&@/illion debt agreement with the Toledo PortHartty
and the Dayton Port Authority to fund capital exgiéures at our Ohio facilities. Initially, $1.5 ridn of the
proceeds was used to purchase an existing buildittge ElImore plant site that previously was béialgl under an
operating lease. The balance of the proceeds g lwild in escrow and will be drawn down as thdieable capita
expenditures are incurred. The agreement callsxmthly installment payments and a $1.1 milliondxah paymen
upon maturity in ten years.

Shareholders’ equityvas $415.5 million at the end of the second qu&@®é1, an increase of $31.1 million
from the balance of $384.4 million as of yegrd 2010 primarily due to comprehensive income28&.% million (se¢
Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statemenig)itl was also affected by stc-based compensation expense,
the exercise of stock options and other factors.

Prior Year Financial Position

Net cash used in operating activities was $20.¥Haniin the first half of 2010 as net income and #ifects of
depreciation were more than offset by a net ina@asvorking capital items, primarily receivablexanventory.
Receivables increased $61.3 million, or 73%, dutirggfirst half of 2010 as a result of the highales volume and
slowdown in the average collection period. Inveig®mere $10.2 million, or 8%, higher at the enthefsecond
quarter 2010 than year-end 2009 due to the higivetd of business. The inventory turnover ratiorionpd during
the first half of 2010. The acquisition of Acade@grporation contributed to the growth in receivatdad inventor
in the first quarter 2010 over the year-end 2008Ie

Other liabilities and accrued items grew $1.9 millin the first half of 2010 due to the currentiperincentive
compensation expense, the change in the fair \ailoatstanding derivatives and other factors. Tgtgagment and
post-employment benefit obligation of $78.6 millias of the end of the second quarter 2010 wasridlign lower
than the year-end 2009 balance due to contributitexde to the domestic defined benefit plan of $dilbon netted
against other factors.
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Capital expenditures, net of reimbursements froengibvernment for purchases made for the berylliaciify
in accordance with the Title Il contract, totaf&t7.3 million. Spending included $7.4 million onrmaidevelopment
at our Utah site.

We purchased the outstanding capital stock of Acgd€orporation for $21.0 million in January 2010.
Immediately after the purchase, we transferred osinp of Academy’s precious metal inventory toraficial
institution for its fair value and consigned it kamder our existing consignment lines.

Total debt stood at $120.5 million at the end ef $kecond quarter 2010, an increase of $56.0 miitmn year-
end 2009. The increase in debt was used to fundaheisition of Academy Corporation, capital expgamés and
the increase in working capital. Cash on hand éf Bnillion at the end of the second quarter 2046 $3.8 millior
higher than the year-end 2009 balance.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgjations

We maintain the majority of our precious metald tha use in production on a consignment basis dleroto
reduce our exposure to metal price movements aretitace our working capital investment. We alsontaan a
portion of our copper requirements on consignnmiené balance outstanding under these off-balanoet she
consignment arrangements totaled $310.9 millidheend of the second quarter 2011 compared to.$2dillion
outstanding as of year-end 2010. The increaseeintitistanding balance was due to higher metalgradditional
metal held in the refine system (which has long:pssing times) and other factors.

We negotiated an increase to the available capaniter the existing off-balance sheet consignment
arrangements during the first half of 2011. Theilalsée and unused capacity under the metal finanlkines totaled
approximately $29.1 million as of July 1, 2011.

We were in compliance with the covenants containexlir consignment agreements as of July 1, 2011.

For additional information on our contractual obligns, please see page 41 of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Liquidity
We believe funds from operations plus the availdldeowing capacity and the current cash balanee ar

adequate to support operating requirements, capitsnditures, projected pension plan contributistrategic
acquisitions and environmental remediation projects

The available and unused borrowing capacity unweekisting lines of credit, which is subject tmiliations se
forth in the debt covenants, was $154.7 milliorfthe end of the second quarter 2011.

In July 2011, we negotiated a new five-year $328illon revolving credit agreement to replace thatfier
$240.0 million revolving credit agreement that weakeduled to mature in the fourth quarter 2012rbgrading and
restating the agreement governing the former fgciln addition to the higher borrowing capacitarious
provisions relating to allowable unsecured delquésitions and other items were revised in the agreement to
provide increased flexibility. The key financial@mants in the new agreement, including a leveratie and fixed
charge coverage ratio, are similar to the formeeagent.

The outstanding cash balance was $9.5 millioneaetid of the second quarter 2011.

The debt-to-debt-plus-equity ratio, a measure tdriz® sheet leverage, was 19% at the end of tlimdec
quarter 2011 compared to 21% at the end of thedirarter 2011 and 18% at yesrd 2010. The movements in d
in the first half of 2011 were partially due to olgas in working capital levels. Our normal patternecent years is
to consume cash in the first quarter and then gémeash over the balance of the year.

While the capacity under the precious metal comamgmt lines was increased during the first half@fD,
should metal requirements increase in future psrimtause of higher volumes and/or prices, we raayhe
available capacity under the existing credit litepurchase metal and/or require customers to guppte of their
own metal.
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Critical Accounting Policies

For additional information regarding critical acating policies, please refer to pages 43 to 46unfAnnual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRB10. There have been no material changes inriitat
accounting policies since the inclusion of thiscdission in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Market Risk Disclosures

For information regarding market risks, pleaser&dgages 47 to 48 of our Annual Report on ForaKIfor
the year ended December 31, 2010. There have lmeeraterial changes in our market risks since thiigion of
this discussion in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Outlook

The order entry rate, while lower than the salesllavas still solid in the second quarter 2011 aag higher
than the first quarter 2011. However, the ordex shdwed down in the latter part of the quarter il the early
portion of the third quarter. This slow down mayche in part to an inventory correction in the aomsr electronic
market. Seasonal factors may also have affectedrtiex entry rate as portions of certain marketsrno$low down
in the summer. The overall backlog remains headtiy we are well positioned in the majority of owarkets for
long-term growth. Even though shipments to ourdatgnarket, consumer electronics, were relativalyiri the
second quarter 2011, our total sales grew, denaiisirthe benefits of our product and market divieegion efforts
over recent years.

The negative margin impact from the start-up ofriees beryllium facility should lessen over the Inaka of
2011, as we believe the facility should be operatigrior to year end. Costs associated with thepaony name
change will continue in the second half of 2011, these marketing expenses will be lower than dstscincurred
on this program during the first half of the yeate are also undertaking a number of initiatives #ra designed to
improve profitability in the long term, but will ddo our cost structure during 2011. Cost contnal eost reduction
efforts will be implemented where possible to hafiset the cost pressures from the higher pensiperese, metal
consignment fees and other items.

Forward-Looking Statements

Portions of the narrative set forth in this docutrteat are not statements of historical or curfaats are
forward-looking statements. Our actual future perfance may materially differ from that contemplabgdthe
forward-looking statements as a result of a varitiactors. These factors include, in additiortitose mentioned
elsewhere herein:

» The global economy

« The condition of the markets which we serviether defined geographically or by segment, withrhajor
market segments being consumer electronics, detenbscience, industrial components and commercial
aerospace, automotive electronics, telecommunitsiitfrastructure, medical, energy and servi

« Changes in product mix and the financial conditibcustomers
» Actual sales, operating rates and margins for 2
« Our success in developing and introducing new petsdand new produramg-up rates;

» Our success in passing through the costswofmaterials to customers or otherwise mitigatingtiiating
prices for those materials, including the impadiiwdtuating prices on inventory value

« Our success in integrating newly acquired busirse:

« The impact of the results of acquisitions o ability to achieve fully the strategic and ficéal objectives
related to these acquisitior

« Our success in implementing our strategic pkamd the timely and successful completion and-sfaof any
capital projects, including the new primary bemytti facility in EImore, Ohio
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« The availability of adequate lines of credit ane #ssociated interest rat

« Other financial factors, including cost ancitability of raw materials (both base and precimetals), metal
financing fees, tax rates, exchange rates, pemrsists and required cash contributions and othet@mee
benefit costs, energy costs, regulatory compliansts, the cost and availability of insurance daditnpact
of the Compan’s stock price on the cost of incentive compensailans;

¢ The uncertainties related to the impact of wenrorist activities and acts of God, includihg recent
earthquake and tsunami in Jap

¢ Changes in government regulatory requiremantsthe enactment of new legislation that impauts o
obligations and operation

¢ The conclusion of pending litigation mattarsaccordance with our expectation that there veilhb material
adverse effects

* The amount and timing of repurchases of our Com8touk, if, any;

* The timing and ability to achieve further effincies and synergies resulting from our name gbamd
product line alignment under the Materion name Miatierion brand; anc

e The risk factors set forth in Part 1, Item &our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eshde
December 31, 201!

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

For information about our market risks, pleaserredeur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadeth
December 31, 2010.

Iltem 4. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under the superviaimhwith participation of management, including @teef
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, bieteffectiveness of the design and operation ofimalosure
controls and procedures as of July 1, 2011 purdwaRule 13a-15(b) under the Securities ExchangeoAt934, as
amended. Based upon that evaluation, our manageimelouiding the Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&ncial
Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of the evaluatioa.dat

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financial reporting identified in connectioiithvthe
evaluation required by Rule 13a-15 under the Sgesificxchange Act of 1934, as amended, that oatalueng the
quarter ended July 1, 2011 that have materiallgctéd, or are reasonably likely to materially affecr internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART Il OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Our subsidiaries and our holding company are stifjexn time to time, to a variety of civil and adhistrative
proceedings arising out of our normal operationsluiding, without limitation, product liability clans, health, safe
and environmental claims and employment-relateidast Among such proceedings are the cases deddréiew.

Beryllium Claims

As of July 1, 2011, our subsidiary, Materion Briisb., was not a defendant in any proceedings brilogh
plaintiffs alleging that they had contracted, od leeen placed at risk of contracting, berylliumssgzation or
chronic beryllium disease or other lung conditiassa result of exposure to beryllium. Plaintiffderyllium cases
sought recovery under negligence and various d¢iged theories and sought compensatory and purdtiveages, i
many cases of an unspecified sum. Spouses of slaimiffs claimed loss of consortium.

During the second quarter of 2011, the number pflliem cases decreased from one case (involvingeth
plaintiffs) to no pending beryllium cases as ofyJul 2011. As previously reported, one case (invnghthree
plaintiffs) settled during the first quarter, bbhetcase had not been dismissed by the court. Bsatlas now been
dismissed. No cases were filed during the quartee. Company has no pending beryllium cases.

The Company has some insurance coverage, subjantdaonual deductible.

Iltem 5. Other Information

Materion Natural Resources Inc. (formerly knowrBassh Resources Inc.), a wholly owned subsidiary,
operates a beryllium mining complex in the Stat&Jtath which is regulated by both the U.S. Mine 8aénd Healt
Administration (“MSHA”) and state regulatory agencies. We endeavor to cvodu mining and other operations
compliance with all applicable federal, state avwhl laws and regulations. We present informatielow regarding
certain mining safety and health citations whichHiAShas levied with respect to our mining operations

Materion Natural Resources Inc. did not receivewariften notice of a pattern of violations underctean 104
(e) of the Mine Act, nor the potential to have sagbattern, and they experienced no mining-rel&tadities during
the quarter ended July 1, 2011.

For reporting purposes of The Dodd-Frank Wall StReform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, we
include the following table that sets forth theatotumber of specific citations and orders anddi& dollar value ¢
the proposed civil penalty assessments that weuedsby MSHA during the quarter ended July 1, 2plisuant to
the Mine Act, for Materion Natural Resources Inc.:

Additional information follows about MSHA refererxased in the table.

¢ Section 104(a) Citations: The total numbeviofations received from MSHA under section 104tet are
significant and substantial citations which aredtieged violations of a mining safety standardegulation
where there exits a reasonable likelihood thahdmard could result in an injury or iliness of agenably
serious nature

¢ Section 104(b) Orders: The total number okosdssued by MSHA under section 104(b) of the Miag
which represents a failure to abate a citation usdetion 104(a) within the period of time presedtby
MSHA. This results in an order of immediate withaed from the area of the mine affected by the ctowli
until MSHA determines that the violation has bebatad.

e Section 104(d) Citations and Orders: The totahber of citations and orders issued by MSHA unde
section 104(d) of the Mine Act for unwarrantabliuie to comply with mandatory health or safetynstards
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e Section 110(b)(2) Violations: The total numbéflagrant violations issued by MSHA under seatid 0(b)
(2) of the Mine Act

¢ Section 107(a) Orders: The total number obmsdssued by MSHA under section 107(a) of the Mintfor
situations in which MSHA determined an imminent g@mexisted

Mine Act Dollar Value
Section 104(a) Mine Act (In thousands)
Significant & Mine Act Section 104(d Mine Act Mine Act Proposed
Substantial Secton 104(b;  Citations & Section 110(b)(2.  Section 107(a MSHA
Mine ID# Citations Orders Orders Violations Orders Assessment:
420070t — — 2 — — $—

Pending Legal Actions. The Federal Mine Safety ldadlth Review Commission is an independent
adjudicative agency that provides administratiied aind appellate review of legal disputes arisinger the Mine
Act. These cases may involve, among other questabradlenges by operators to citations, orderspamdlties they
have received from MSHA, or complaints of discriation by miners under Section 105 of the Mine Act the
quarter ended July 1, 2011, no legal actions andipg.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

3 Amended and Restated Code of Regulati
1.1  Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated JulgQ3 among Materion Corporation,
Materion Advanced Materials Technologies and Sess/ietherlands B.V., JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. and other lenders from time to time party gter(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registr's
Form &K (File No. 1-15885)filed on July 18, 2011), incorporated herein byerefice
1C.2  Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Severagesefent, dated May 4, 20
10.3  Third Amendment to the Brush Engineered Materiats Amended and Restated Executive
Deferred Compensation Plan 11, dated July 6, 2!
104  Amendment No. 3 to the Brush Engineered Materiads Key Employee Share Option Plan dated
July 12, 2011
165 Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006kStaentive Plan (as Amended and Restated
as of May 4, 2011) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thegR&rant’s Form 8-K (File No. 1-15885) filed on
May 5, 2011), incorporated herein by referer
10.6  Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006 &uoployee Director Equity Plan (as
Amended and Restated as of May 4, 2011) (filed gzeAdix B to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement
(File No. 1-15885)filed on March 25, 2011), incorporated herein bigmence.
11 Statement regarding computation of per share egsr
311  Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg Rule 13i-14(a)or 15¢-14(a).
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer require¢ Rule 13i-14(a)or 15c¢-14(a).
32 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
*101.INS XBRL Instance Documer
*101.SCH SBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docurr
*101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
*101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
*101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenot

* XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) imfation is furnished and not filed or a part of gis&ation
statement or prospectus for purposes of sectiors 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, is deemedfited for
purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchangeof1934, and otherwise is not subject to liapilinder
these section:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedith
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigriethereunto duly authorized.

MATERION CORPORATION

/sl John D. Grampa

John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: August 9, 2011
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Exhibit 3

AMENDED AND RESTATED CODE OF REGULATIONS
OF
MATERION CORPORATION

Shareholder Meetings

1. Time And Place Of Meetings. All meetinggtud shareholders for the election of directorfboany other purpose will be held at such
time and place, within or without the State of Qleie may be designated by the Board of Directgrsdhe absence of a designation by the
Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board afebiors, if any (the “Chairman”), the Presideng Secretary or any other individual
entitled to give notice pursuant to Regulation He Time of the meeting shall be stated in the paticmeeting. The Board of Director may
postpone and reschedule any previously scheduleabhor special meeting of the shareholders.

2. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of tharstholders will be held at such time and place ag be designated pursuant to
Regulation 1, at which meeting the shareholdersehdtt directors to succeed those directors witesas expire at such meeting and will
transact such other business as may be broughentydpefore the meeting in accordance with Regate. If the annual meeting is not held
or if the number of directors elected thereat issudficient to replace the directors whose terxygre at that meeting and to fill all other
vacancies, directors may be elected at a speciatimgecalled for the purpose of electing directors.

3. Special Meetings. (a) Special meetingshafsholders may be called by the Chairman, by thsident, by a Vice President, by a
majority of the Board of Directors acting with oithout a meeting or by any person or persons whao hat less than 50% of all the shares
outstanding and entitled to be voted on any prdgodae submitted at the meeting to be called. Bpereetings of the holders of shares that
are entitled to call a special meeting by virtuany Preferred Stock Designation may call such imgein the manner and for the purposes
provided in the applicable terms of such PrefeBtxtk Designation. For purposes of this AmendedRestated Code of Regulations,
“Preferred Stock Designation” means the expresagaf shares of any class or series of capitakstbthe Corporation, whether now or
hereafter issued, with rights to distributions semd those of the Common Stock including, withlimitation, any relative, participating,
optional or other special rights and privilegesasfd any qualifications or restrictions on, suchreh.

(b) Upon written request by any person or gassentitled to call a meeting of shareholdersvdedid in person or by registered mail to the
President or the Secretary, such officer shalhfeith cause notice of the meeting to be given éshareholders entitled to notice of such
meeting in accordance with Regulation 4. If sucticeoshall not be given within 60 days after théweey or mailing of such request, the
person or persons requesting the meeting may dixithe of the meeting and give, or cause to bergimetice in the manner provided in
Regulation 4.

4. Notice Of Meetings. Written notice of evengeting of the shareholders called in accordantethese Regulations (including any
postponed and rescheduled meeting), stating thes place and purposes for which the meeting iedaWill be given by or at the direction
the President, a Vice President, the Secretarp drsaistant Secretary (or in case of their reftsalive notice by the person or persons
entitled to call the meeting under Regulation 3jctsnotice will be given by personal delivery, bgihor by electronic medium not fewer tt
7 nor more than 60 calendar days before the dateeaheeting to each shareholder of record entitigtbtice of such meeting. If such notice
is mailed, it shall be addressed to the sharehelatetheir respective addresses as they appeleardords of the Corporation, and notice
shall be deemed to have been given on the day Bednilotice of adjournment of a meeting need reoglven if the time and place to which
it is adjourned are fixed and announced at suchingee

5. Inspectors. Inspectors of election maygEoated to act at any meeting of shareholdersaom@ance with Ohio law.

6. Shareholder Lists. At any meeting of shaledrs, an alphabetically arranged list, or clasdifists, of the shareholders of record as of
the applicable record date who are entitled to \&tewing their respective addresses and the nuamukclasses of shares held by each, shall
be produced on the request of any shareholder.




7. Quorum. To constitute a quorum at any meetif shareholders, there shall be present, iropess by proxy, shareholders of record
entitled to exercise not less than a majority ef\ibting power of the Corporation in respect of ang of the purposes for which the meeting
is called, unless a greater or lesser number iseszgly provided for with respect to a particulassl or series of capital stock by the terms of
any applicable Preferred Stock Designation. Exesphay be otherwise provided in any Preferred Simdignation, the holders of a majol
of the voting power of the Corporation represeriteplerson or by proxy at a meeting of shareholdehgther or not a quorum be present,
may adjourn the meeting from time to time. For psgs of this Amended and Restated Code of Regusativoting power of the
Corporation” means the aggregate voting power palfghe outstanding shares of Common Stock ofGbgporation and (b) all the
outstanding shares of any class or series of dapitek of the Corporation that has (i) rights tstdbutions senior to those of the Common
Stock including, without limitation, any relativearticipating, optional or other special rights gmivileges of, and any qualifications or
restrictions on, such shares and (ii) voting rigisitling such shares to vote generally in thet@e of directors.

8. Voting. Except as otherwise expressly nelby law, the Amended and Restated Articles obiporation or this Amended and
Restated Code of Regulations, at any meeting agehbéders at which a quorum is present, a majofithe votes cast, whether in person or
by proxy, on any matter properly brought beforehsmeeting in accordance with Regulation 9 will be &ct of the shareholders. An
abstention shall not represent a vote cast. A bbéder may revoke any proxy that is not irrevocdbleattending the meeting and voting in
person or by filing with the Secretary written metiof revocation or a later appointment. The v@enuany question brought before a meeting
of the shareholders may be by voice vote, unldssraise required by law, the Amended and Restatédlés of Incorporation or this
Amended and Restated Code of Regulations or utilegsresiding officer otherwise determines. Everievtaken by written ballot will be
counted by the inspectors of election, if inspextafrelection are appointed.

9. Order Of Business. (a) The Chairman, ohstber officer of the Corporation as is designdtgé majority of the total number of
directors that the Corporation would have if thesre no vacancies on the Board of Directors (suchlrer being referred to as the “Whole
Board”), will call meetings of shareholders to ardad will act as presiding officer thereof. Unleskerwise determined by the Board of
Directors prior to the meeting, the presiding adfiof the meeting of shareholders will also detaeerthe order of business and have the
authority in his or her sole discretion to regulédte conduct of any such meeting, including, withauitation, (i) by imposing restrictions on
the persons (other than shareholders of the Cdiporar their duly appointed proxies) who may attemy such shareholderseeting, (ii) by
ascertaining whether any shareholder or his proay be excluded from any meeting of shareholdersdapon the presiding officer's
determination that any such person has unduly pliscuor is likely to disrupt the proceedings of theeting and (iii) by determining the
circumstances in which and time at which any persay make a statement or ask questions at anymgeaftshareholders.

(b) At an annual meeting of the shareholdamg; such business will be conducted or considased properly brought before the meeting.
To be properly brought before an annual meetinginmss must be (i) specified in the notice of rmgefor any supplement thereto) given by
or at the direction of the President, a Vice Presigthe Secretary or an Assistant Secretary iardaoce with Regulation 4, (ii) otherwise
properly brought before the meeting by the pregidifficer or by or at the direction of a majoritf/tbe Whole Board or (iii) otherwise
properly requested to be brought before the meéyng shareholder of the Corporation in accordavite Regulation 9(c).

(c) For business to be properly requested dlyaseholder to be brought before an annual medhiegshareholder must (i) be a shareholder
of the Corporation of record at the time of theiggpof the notice for such annual meeting as preditbr in this Amended and Restated Code
of Regulations, (ii) be entitled to vote at suchetimey and (iii) have given timely written notice thie request to the Secretary. To be timely, a
shareholder’s notice must be delivered to or mailed received at the principal executive officethef Corporation not fewer than 60 nor
more than 90 calendar days prior to the annualingeetrovided, however, that in the event public announcement of the dateeannual
meeting is not made at least 75 calendar days tarittre date of the annual meeting and the anneating is held on a date more than ten
calendar days before or after the first anniverséiye date on which the prior year’s annual nmeptias held, notice by the shareholder, to
be timely, must be so received not later than theecof business on the 10th calendar day followliregday on which public announcement is
first made of the date of the annual meeting. Aahalders notice to the Secretary must set forth as to e@atter the shareholder propose
bring before the annual meeting (A) a descriptioneiasonable detail of the business desired tadagght before the annual meeting and the
reasons for conducting such business at the anmeeting, (B) the name and address, as they appahedCorporation’s books, of the
shareholder proposing such business and of thdibhewner, if other than the shareholder, on sdbehalf the proposal is made, (C) the
class and number of shares of the Corporationatleadwned beneficially and of record by the shddsrgroposing such business and by the
beneficial owner, if other than the shareholdernmbiose behalf the proposal is made and (D) anynmhbteterest of the shareholder propos
such business and the beneficial owner, if other




than the shareholder, on whose behalf the profpesadde in such business. Notwithstanding the farggprovisions of this Amended and
Restated Code of Regulations, a shareholder mestaimply with all applicable requirements of tlee@ities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and the rules and regulations thereunitteregpect to the matters set forth in this Reipha9(c). For purposes of this Regulation 9
(c) and Regulation 14, “public announcement” magisslosure in a press release reported by the DovsINews Service, Associated Press,
or comparable national news service or in a doctipelicly filed by the Corporation with the Sedigs and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Sections 13, 14 or 15(d) of the SaesriExchange Act of 1934, as amended, or publildyg by the Corporation with any natiol
securities exchange or quotation service througiciwine Corporation’s stock is listed or tradedfurnished by the Corporation to its
shareholders. Nothing in this Regulation 9(c) Wwéldeemed to affect any rights of shareholdersdaest inclusion of proposals in the
Corporation’s proxy statement pursuant to Rule 8 4mder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, andet

(d) At a special meeting of shareholders, @uigh business may be conducted or consideredoasgerly brought before the meeting. To
be properly brought before a special meeting, lssimust be (i) specified in the notice of the ingglor any supplement thereto) given by
or at the direction of the President, a Vice Presigthe Secretary or an Assistant Secretary (ca$e of their failure to give any required
notice, the other persons entitled to give notisegccordance with Regulation 4 or (ii) otherwiseught before the meeting by the presiding
officer or by or at the direction of a majority the Whole Board.

(e) The determination of whether any busirsesght to be brought before any annual or specégitimg of the shareholders is properly
brought before such meeting in accordance withRligigulation 9 will be made by the presiding offioésuch meeting. If the presiding offic
determines that any business is not properly brobgtore such meeting, he or she will so declatbéameeting and any such business will
not be conducted or considered.

10. Report To Shareholders. At the annual imgebr at the meeting held in lieu thereof, thiécefs of the Corporation shall lay before the
shareholders a financial statement as requiredabyts.

11. Action Without A Meeting. Any action thaiiay be authorized or taken at a meeting of theetlvdders may be authorized or taken
without a meeting in a writing or writings signeg &ll of the shareholders who would be entitleddtice of a meeting for such purpose,
which writing or writings shall be filed with or &sred upon the records of the Corporation.

Directors

12. Function. Except where the law, the Amenaled Restated Articles of Incorporation or thisekded and Restated Code of
Regulations requires action to be authorized cgraky the shareholders, all of the authority of@meporation shall be exercised by or under
the direction of the Board of Directors.

13. Number, Terms And Election Of Directoes). The directors of the corporation, other thars¢heho may be expressly elected by vi
of the terms of any Preferred Stock Designatioaldfe classified with respect to the time for whtbey severally hold office into three
classes. Except as may be otherwise provided irPagferred Stock Designation, each class will cirgfinot less than three directors, unless
and until the number of directors of any such clashanged in accordance with this RegulationTh& number of directors of any class will
be determined from time to time by (i) the affiriwatvote of the holders of a majority of the votipgwer of the Corporation, voting together
as a single class, or (ii) a vote of a majorityhef Whole Board.

(b) The directors first appointed to Classill hold office for a term expiring at the annuaésgting of shareholders to be held in 2001; the
directors first appointed to Class Il will hold @# for a term expiring at the annual meeting @rsholders to be held in 2002; and the
directors first appointed to Class Il will holdfial for a term expiring at the annual meetinglwreholders to be held in 2003. The members
of each class will hold office until their successare elected. At each annual meeting beginni®@1, directors will be elected for a tern
three years from the date of their election and the election of their successors.

(c) At each annual meeting of the shareholdétse Corporation, the successors to the dirsatdrose terms expire at that meeting she
elected by a plurality of all the votes cast atsoeeting. Cumulative voting in the election ofeditors shall be permitted as provided by
statute. Election of directors of the Corporati@ed not be by written ballot unless requested byptiesiding officer or by the holders of a
majority of the voting power of the Corporation geat in person or represented by proxy at a meefittte shareholders at which directors
are to be elected. Directors may also be electealmgjority of the votes cast at a special meataltpd for the purpose of electing director
as may otherwise be provided by any Preferred Sbmskgnation.




14. Newly Created Directorships And Vacanciesept as may be otherwise provided in any PredeBtock Designation, any vacancy
(including newly created directorships resultingnfrany increase in the number of directors andvacgncies on the Board of Directors
resulting from death, resignation, disqualificatioemoval, or other cause) may be filled by (i) &fermative vote of a majority of the
remaining directors then in office, even thougls l#smn a quorum of the Board of Directors, (iies@maining director or (i) the affirmative
vote of the holders of a majority of the Voting Ravef the Corporation, voting together as a sintdss, after a vote to increase the numb
directors at a meeting called for that purposecopadance with this Amended and Restated Code gfilR&ons. Any director elected in
accordance with this Regulation 14, any PrefertediSDesignation or applicable statute will holdicd for the remainder of the full term of
the class of directors in which the new directgrshias created or the vacancy occurred and until director’s successor has been elected.

15. Removal. Except as may otherwise be peaviny any Preferred Stock Designation, all Dirextéor whatever terms elected, shall h
office subject to applicable statutory provisiosg@the creation of vacancies and removal. Noedeser in the number of directors constitu
the Board of Directors may shorten the term of imeymbent director.

16. Nominations Of Directors; Election. (a)dept as may be otherwise provided in any Prefestedk Designation, only persons who are
nominated in accordance with this Regulation 16 gleligible for election at a meeting of shareleos to be members of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation.

(b) Nominations of persons for election agcliors of the Corporation may be made only at aingeef shareholders (i) by or at the
direction of the Board of Directors or a committeereof or (ii) by any shareholder who is a shaledroof record at the time of giving of
notice provided for in this Regulation 16, who igied to vote for the election of directors atkumeeting, and who complies with the
procedures set forth in this Regulation 16. All moations by shareholders must be made to the Segriet proper written form and must be
timely.

(c) To be timely, a shareholder’s notice nhestlelivered to or mailed and received at the ppai@xecutive offices of the Corporation, in
the case of a special meeting of the shareholdetke time the meeting request is made in accosdatith Regulation 3, or, in the case of an
annual meeting, not fewer than 60 nor more thaca®&ndar days prior to such annual meetpngyided, however, that in the event that pub
announcement of the date of the annual meetingtismnade at least 75 calendar days prior to theafatee annual meeting and the annual
meeting is held on a date more than one week befaaéter the first anniversary of the date on wattite prior year’'s annual meeting, was
held, notice by the shareholder to be timely messd received not later than the close of busioeghe 10th calendar day following the day
on which public announcement is first made of tatedf the annual meeting.

(d) To be in proper written form, such shatdbgs notice must set forth or include:

(i) the name and address, as they appeareo@dtporation’s books, of the shareholder givirgibtice and of the beneficial owner, if
any, on whose behalf the nomination is made;

(ii) a representation that the shareholdeingithe notice is a holder of record of stock & @orporation entitled to vote at such annual
meeting and intends to appear in person or by pabxige annual meeting to nominate the personmiops specified in the notice;

(iii) the class and number of shares of stfcthe Corporation owned beneficially and of recbydthe shareholder giving the notice and
by the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behadf tlomination is made;

(iv) a description of all arrangements or ustbndings between or among any of (A) the shadengaiving the notice, (B) the benefic
owner on whose behalf the notice is given, (C) eamhinee and (D) any other person or persons (rgsunh person or persons) pursuant
to which the nomination or nominations are to belenby the shareholder giving the notice;

(v) such other information regarding each nweiproposed by the shareholder giving the noticgaald be required to be included i
proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rulethe Securities and Exchange Commission had th&meee been nominated, or intended
to be nominated, by the Board of Directors; and




(vi) the signed consent of each nominee teesas a director of the Corporation if so elected.

(e) The presiding officer of any annual megtimay, if the facts warrant, determine that a natiim was not made in accordance with this
Regulation 16, and if he or she should so deternhieer she will so declare to the meeting, andi#fective nomination will be disregarded.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thisgkation 16, a shareholder must also comply witlagplicable requirements of tl
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, anduths and regulations thereunder with respeitte¢anatters set forth in this Regulation
16.

17. Resignation. Any director may resign at time by giving written notice of his resignatitmthe Chairman or the Secretary. Any
resignation will be effective upon actual receiptamy such person or, if later, as of the datetame specified in such written notice.

18. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings otbard of Directors shall be held immediately aftex annual meeting of the shareholders
and at such other time and place either within itinaut the State of Ohio as may from time to tineedetermined by a majority of the Whole
Board. Notice of regular meetings of the Board @&Etors need not be given.

19. Special Meetings. Special meetings oBbard of Directors may be called by the Chairmanthe President, by a Vice President, by
the Secretary or by any two directors. Notice @fcs@l meetings, stating the place, date and hball Be given to each director by whom s
notice is not waived. Notice must be given eitherspnally or by mail, telephone, telegram, telexsfmile or similar medium of
communication not less than twerfour hours before the designated hour for such imgeSpecial meetings of the Board of Directors rhe
held at such time and place either within or withitie State of Ohio as is determined by a majafitthe Whole Board or specified in the
notice of any such meeting.

20. Quorum And Vote. At all meetings of theaBa of Directors, a majority of the total numberdirectors then in office will constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. Except ag loe otherwise provided in any Preferred Stockidgiedion or by this Amended and
Restated Code of Regulations, the act of a majofitire directors present at any meeting at whiga@um is present will be the act of the
Board of Directors. If a quorum is not presentrat meeting of the Board of Directors, the directomssent thereat may adjourn the meeting
from time to time to another time or place, withaotice other than announcement at the meeting,augtiorum is present.

21. Action Without A Meeting. Any action thaiiay be authorized or taken at a meeting of the @o&birectors may be authorized or
taken without a meeting in a writing or writinggsed by all the directors, which writing or writinghall be filed with or entered upon the
records of the Corporation.

22. Participation In Meetings By Communicatidiquipment. Meetings of the Board of Director@any committee of the Board of
Directors may be held through any means of comnatioic equipment if all persons participating caarteach other, and such participation
will constitute presence in person at such meeting.

23. Committees. The Board of Directors mayrfiime to time create an executive committee or@hgr committee or committees of
directors to act in the intervals between meetofghe Board of Directors and may delegate to suarhmittee or committees any of its
authority other than that of filling vacancies argdghe Board of Directors or in any committee of Bward of Directors. Each committee st
consist of one or more directors. The Board of &iives may appoint one or more directors as altermsmbers of any such committee to-
the place of absent committee members at meetirgsch committee. Unless otherwise ordered by thar® of Directors, a majority of the
members of any committee appointed by the Boaiimfctors pursuant to this Regulation 23 shall titute a quorum at any meeting
thereof, and the act of a majority of the membeesent at a meeting at which a quorum is presetitlsé the act of such committee. Action
may be taken by any such committee without a mgddyna writing or writings signed by all of its mbars. Any such committee shall
prescribe its own rules for calling and holding tiregs and its method of procedure, subject to aigsrprescribed by the Board of Directors,
and will keep a written record of all action takanit.

24. Compensation. The Board of Directors megldish the compensation and expense reimburseuoéeies for directors in exchange
for service on the Board of Directors and on corterg of the Board of Directors, for attendance egtings of the Board of Directors or
committees of the Board of Directors, and for otbemwices by directors to the Corporation or anigso$ubsidiaries.

25. Bylaws. The Board of Directors may adoplal¥s for the conduct of its meetings and thosargf committees of




the Board of Directors that are not inconsisterthwhie Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatir this Amended and Restated Code
of Regulations.

Officers

26. Generally. The Corporation may have a @, elected by the directors from among their lpeirmand shall have a President, who
shall also be a director, a Secretary and a Treasline Corporation may also have one or more Riesidents and such other officers and
assistant officers as the Board of Directors mantappropriate. If the Board of Directors so desiitemay elect a Chief Executive Officer
manage the affairs of the Corporation, subjechéodirection and control of the Board of DirectakB.of the officers shall be elected by the
Board of Directors. Notwithstanding the foregoibg,specific action, the Board of Directors may auithe the Chairman or the President to
appoint any person to any office other than ChairnRaesident, Secretary or Treasurer. Any numbeffies may be held by the same
person, and no two offices must be held by the gaengon. Any of the offices, other than the offiéd’resident, Secretary and Treasurer,
be left vacant from time to time as the Board afbiors may determine. In case of the absencesabitity of any officer of the Corporation
or for any other reason deemed sufficient by a nitgjof the Board of Directors, the Board of Direct may delegate the absent or disabled
officer's powers or duties to any other officertorany director.

27. Authority And Duties Of Officers. The aféirs of the Corporation shall have such authonity ghall perform such duties as are
customarily incident to their respective officesas may be specified from time to time by the BloafrDirectors, regardless of whether such
authority and duties are customarily incident tohsaffice.

28. Compensation. The compensation of alteff and agents of the Corporation who are alsolraesiof the Board of Directors of the
Corporation will be fixed by the Board of Directarsby a committee of the Board of Directors. TheaRl of Directors may fix the
compensation of the other officers and agentsefXbrporation, or delegate the power to fix suainpensation, to the Chief Executive
Officer or any other officer of the Corporation.

29. Succession. The officers of the Corporatud| hold office until their successors are ettpursuant to Regulation 26. Any officer r
be removed at any time by the affirmative vote afaority of the Whole Board. Any vacancy occurringany office of the Corporation may
be filled by the Board of Directors or by the Chaén or President as provided in Regulation 26.

Stock

30. Transfer And Registration Of Certificat€he Board of Directors shall have authority to malach rules and regulations as it deems
expedient concerning the issuance, transfer aristration of certificates for shares and the shezpsesented thereby and may appoint
transfer agents and registrars thereof.

31. Substituted Certificates. Any person clagra certificate for shares to have been lostestor destroyed (i) shall make an affidavit or
affirmation of that fact, (ii) shall give the Comaion and its registrar or registrars and itstfanagent or agents a bond of indemnity
satisfactory to the Board of Directors or a comeditthereof or to the President or a Vice Presidedtthe Secretary or the Treasurer and
(iii) shall, if required by the Board of Directoos a committee thereof or the officers named ia Bégulation 31, advertise the fact that the
certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed redmn a new certificate may be executed and delivef the same tenor and for the same
number of shares as the one alleged to have begrsiolen or destroyed.

32. Voting Of Shares Held By The Corporatidnless otherwise ordered by the Board of Directitnes President, in person or by proxy or
proxies appointed by him, shall have full power anthority on behalf of the Corporation to vote, @td consent with respect to any shares
issued by other corporations and owned by the Catjom.

33. Record Dates And Owners. (a) In order tiatCorporation may determine the shareholderdezhto notice of or to vote at any
meeting of shareholders or any adjournment theoedf) designate an agent to act on behalf of hlaeeholders to call a special meeting of
shareholders, or to take any other collective aatio behalf of the shareholders, the Board of Dirscmay fix a record date, which will not
be fewer than 7 nor more than 60 calendar daygédfe date of such meeting. If no record datesifby the Board of Directors, the record
date for determining shareholders entitled to motitor to vote at a meeting of shareholders véltlie date next preceding the day on which
notice is given, or, if notice is waived, the dagxt preceding the day on which the meeting is.held




(b) The Corporation will be entitled to treélaé person in whose name shares are registerdwdiobks of the Corporation as the absolute
owner thereof, and will not be bound to recognizg @quitable or other claim to, or interest in,lsgbare on the part of any other person,
whether or not the Corporation has knowledge oicaaif the claim or interest, except as expressbyiged by applicable law.

Indemnification and Insurance
34. Indemnification.

(a) The Corporation shall indemnify, to th# &xtent then permitted by law, any director ofiadr or former director or officer of the
Corporation who was or is a party or is threatetodoe made a party to any threatened, pendingrapleted action, suit or proceeding,
whether civil, criminal, administrative or invesditye, by reason of the fact that he is or was enber of the Board of Directors or an officer,
employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or s&x¥ing at the request of the Corporation as atiretrustee, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation, partnership, joint ventunesttior other enterprise. The Corporation shall payhe full extent then required by law,
expenses, including attornayfees, incurred by a member of the Board of Dinescin defending any such action, suit or procegdiithey ai
incurred, in advance of the final disposition ttodre

(b) To the full extent then permitted by late Corporation may indemnify employees, agentsaher persons and may pay expenses,
including attorney’s fees, incurred by any emplgyagent or other person in defending any actioit osyproceeding as such expenses are
incurred, in advance of the final disposition ttodre

(c) The indemnification and payment of expsnz®vided by this Regulation 34 shall not be esigtel of, and shall be in addition to, any
other rights granted to any person seeking indaoatibn under any law, the Amended and Restateidl&stof Incorporation, any agreement,
vote of shareholders or disinterested memberseoBthard of Directors, or otherwise, both as tocarcin official capacities and as to action in
another capacity while he or she is a member oBthead of Directors or an officer, employee or a&g#rthe Corporation, and shall continue
as to a person who has ceased to be a memberBbérd of Directors, trustee, officer, employeeagent and shall inure to the benefit of the
heirs, executors, and administrators of such aopers

35. Insurance. The Corporation may, to theedent then permitted by law and authorized leyBloard of Directors, purchase and
maintain insurance or furnish similar protectiorgluding but not limited to trust funds, lettersopédit or self-insurance, on behalf of or for
any persons described in Regulation 34 againstialijity asserted against and incurred by any guetson in any such capacity, or arising
out of his status as such, whether or not the Gatjom would have the power to indemnify such peragainst such liability. Insurance may
be purchased from or maintained with a person iichvthe Corporation has a financial interest.

36. Agreements. The Corporation, upon apprbydahe Board of Directors, may enter into agreeaiith any persons who the
Corporation may indemnify under this Amended andt&ed Code of Regulations or under law and magtiakle thereby to indemnify such
persons and to pay the expenses incurred by thel@fémding any action, suit or proceeding agatmett, whether or not the Corporation
would have the power under law or this AmendedRestated Code of Regulations to indemnify any sskon.

General

37. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Cogpian will end on the thirty-first day of Decembereach calendar year or such other date as
may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Bi@s.

38. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shattibmilar in form with the name of the Corporati&tamped around the margin and the word
“Seal” stamped across the center.

39. Amendments. Except as otherwise provigekh or by the Amended and Restated Articles abtporation or this Amended and
Restated Code of Regulations, these Regulatioasypf them may be amended in any respect or regedlany time, either (i) by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority oetkioting power of the Corporation, voting togethsia single class, or (i) to the extent as
be permitted by Chapter 1701 of the Ohio Revisededo effect from time to time, by the Board of &itors.



Exhibit 10.z

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED BEVERANCE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”), dated as\déy 4,
2011, is made and entered by and between Mateopotation (formerly named Brush Engineered Matgiiac.), an Ohio corporation (the
“Company”), and Gregory Chemnitz (the “Executive”).

The Company and the Executive hereby agreentend the Amended and Restated Severance Agreatatad,July 30, 2008 (the
“Agreement”), between the Company and the Execwté/set forth in this Amendment.

1. Paragraphs (1), (6), and (7) of Annex Ahaf Agreement are hereby amended by deleting tfesptitwo times” wherever it appears
therein and replacing it with the phrase “threeetifa

2. Paragraph 3(a) of Annex A of the Agreenigiereby amended by deleting the phrase “24 mbmthere it appears therein and
replacing it with the phrase “36 months”.

3. Paragraph 3(b) of Annex A of the Agreenismitereby amended by deleting the phrase “thevidtig year” where it appears therein and
replacing it with the phrase “the following two ysa

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have causelAmendment to be duly executed and delivered #iseodate first written above.
MATERION CORPORATION
/sl Michael C. Hasychak

Name: Michael C. Hasychal
Title: Vice President, Treasurer & Secrete

/sl Gregory R. Chemnitz
Gregory R. Chemnit:
Vice President, General Couns




EXHIBIT 10.3

THIRD AMENDMENT
TO
BRUSH ENGINEERED MATERIALS INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE DEFERRED COMPENSATIO N PLAN I

The Brush Engineered Materials Inc. Amezhdnd Restated Executive Deferred CompensationiPlene “Plan”),adopted on June 2

2008, is here by amended in the following respeffesctive March 8, 2011, for the purpose of reflsggtname changes.

1. Section 2.2 of the Plan is amendment and restatéallaws:
2.2 Annual Excess Compensatimeans for a Plan Year a Participant's Base Satargdrvices performed during the Plan Year,
performance compensation payable in the Plan Yedenthe Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries Mangnt Performance
Compensation Plan, and incentive compensation payalsash, cash equivalents, equity and equitgthasnounts in the Plan Year
under the Materion Corporation and Subsidiariesg-®arm Incentive Plan, whether or not such compt#nsés reportable on Form W-
2 for the Plan Year, but only to the extent thathscompensation exceeds the limit imposed on cosgiem taken into account under
the Materion Corporation Savings and Investment Biareason of Code Section 401(a)(17) as deterhbigehe Plan Administrato

2. Section 2.7 of the Plan is amended and restatéallaws:
2.7 Companymeans Materion Corporation, an Ohio corporat

3. Section 2.15 of the Plan is amended and restatéllaws:
2.15 Plarmeans the plan, the terms and provisions of whietharein set forth, and as it may be amendedstatesl from time to time,
designated as t*Materion Corporation Executive Deferred CompensaRitan 11"

4. The first sentence of Section 4.2 of the Plan ierashed and restated as follov
There shall be credited to each Participantsolint for each Plan Year an amount equal to theeeent of his or her Annual Excess
Compensation, or such other percent as may beliskedbfrom time to time by action of the Boardhtaintain parity with the matching
contribution rate available under the Materion I8avings and Investment Pl
WITNESS WHEREOF, Materion Corporation lsassed this Amendment to be executed by its dutlyssized officer this 6th day of

July, 2011.

MATERION CORPORATION

By /s/ Michael C. Hasychak
Name: Michael C. Hasychal
Title:  Vice President, Treasurer & Secrete




EXHIBIT 10.4

AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO
BRUSH ENGINEERED MATERIALS INC.
KEY EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN

Materion Corporation, an Ohio corporation,disradopts this Amendment No. 3 to the Brush EmgagkMaterials Inc. Key Employee
Share Option (the “Plan”) for the purpose of releg name changes.

Section 1.6 of the Plan is amended to provide bmwe:

1.6 “Corporation” means Materion Brush Inc., an Ohio corporationespect of periods prior to the Effective Time, &faterion
Corporation, an Ohio corporation, in respect ofqus from and after the Effective Time, and anycgssor to Materion Corporation.

Section 1.17 of the Plan is amended to provideisis:

1.17 “Plan” means the Materion Brush Inc. Key Employee Sharo®®lan in respect of periods prior to the EffeefTime and the
Materion Corporation Key Employee Share Option Parespect of periods from and after the Effecffume, as the same may be
amended or restated from time to time.

M.
The foregoing changes to the Plan shall be effecs/of March 8, 2011.

WITNESS WHEREOF, Materion Corporation has egiuthis Amendment to be executed by its duly aigkdrofficer this 12th day of
July, 2011.

MATERION CORPORATION
By /s/ Michael C. Hasychak

Name: Michael C. Hasychal
Title: Vice President, Treasurer & Secrete




MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

Second Quarter Ended

Exhibit 11

Six Months Ended

July 1, July 2, July 1, July 2,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Basic:
Average shares outstandi 20,421,000 20,323,000 20,388,00 20,290,00
Net income $13,872,000 $13,719,000 $25,690,00 $20,440,00
Per share amoul $ 0.6¢ $ 0.6¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 1.01
Diluted:
Average shares outstandi 20,421,000 20,323,000 20,388,00 20,290,00
Dilutive stock securities based on the treasurglstc
method using average market pr 411,00( 277,00( 424,00( 244,00(
Totals 20,832,000 20,600,000 20,812,00 20,534,00
Net income $13,872,000 $13,719,000 $25,690,00 $20,440,00
Per share amoul $ 067 $ 067 $ 128§ 1.0C




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Richard J. Hipple, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ@ 0f Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoreny untrue statement of a material fact or emittate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash floivihe Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedores
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over foiah
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisin
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirttat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recqgtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signific
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/sl Richard J. Hipple

Richard J. Hipple
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: August 9, 201



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

[, John D. Grampa, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ@ 0f Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoreny untrue statement of a material fact or emittate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahcondition, results of operations and cash floiihe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedores
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over foiah
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopytwide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabil
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisin
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirttat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, ae@sonably likely to materially affect, the reggstt’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal cortvelr
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recqgtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signific
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/sl John D. Grampa

John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: August 9, 201



Exhibit 32
Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedi@otr$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22
connection with the filing of the Quarterly Report Form 10-Q of Materion Corporation (the “Comparfgt the
quarter ended July 1, 2011, as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herkef‘Report”),
each of the undersigned officers of the Compantifieer that, to such officer's knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeoftSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleAg!
of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)), and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdéton
and results of operations of the Company as ofiftes and for the periods expressed in the Report.

/sl Richard J. Hipple

Richard J. Hipple
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

/sl John D. Grampa

John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: August 9, 201



